
Children’s Services Council of Leon County (CSC Leon) Governing Council Meeting 
Thursday, September 14, 2023, 4:00 p.m. 

CSC Leon Office | 2002 Old St. Augustine Road, Bldg. A, Ste. 50, Tallahassee, FL 32301 

Members of the public can view the meeting via live stream, when available, on this YouTube channel: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCc74A9evhLxbHIrH63-cIbQ. 

AGENDA 
I. Call to Order

II. Roll Call
III. Approval of Agenda
IV. General Public Comment
V. Consent Agenda

A. Minutes from the July meeting (page 2)
B. Financials for July and August 2023 (pages 5 and 9, respectively)
C. Executive Director’s Report (page 14)

VI. General Counsel’s Update
A. Preview of October Annual Meeting
B. Procedure for Executive Director Evaluation Schedule

VII. Family Resource Center (FRC) Management Procurement
A. Revised FRC Management Invitation to Negotiate (page 15, memo, and page 19, ITN)

i. Presentation and Review of Revised FRC Management Invitation to Negotiate and Statement 
of Work (SOW)

ii. Questions and Answers/Discussion
1. Scope
2. Terms
3. Qualifications of Vendors
4. Appointments to Evaluation & Negotiation Teams
5. Evaluation Criteria

iii. Public Comment
iv. Consideration to Approve Revised FRC Management ITN and SOW

VIII. Small Investments for Program Success (page 57)
A. Presentation of Applicants
B. Questions and Answers/Discussion
C. Public Comment
D. Consideration of Funding Recommendation

IX. Preview of Summer Bridge 2024 (Handout)
X. Next Meeting Dates

A. Truth in Millage Hearings
i. Thursday, September 14, at 6:05 p.m.

ii. Thursday, September 28, at 5:15 p.m.
B. Council Strategic Planning Meeting – Saturday, September 30, 9:00 a.m.
C. Next Full Council and Annual Meeting – Thursday, October 19, at 4:00 p.m.

XI. Next Meeting Agenda
XII. Member Comments

XIII. Adjourn

1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCc74A9evhLxbHIrH63-cIbQ


CHILDREN’S SERVICES COUNCIL OF LEON COUNTY 
Governing Council Meeting 

Thursday, July 20, 2023 

MINUTES 

Members Present: 
• Dr. Zandra Glenn, Chair, Community Member
• Terrence Watts, Vice-Chair, DCF Appointee
• Paul Mitchell, Treasurer, Community Member
• Atty. Carolyn Cummings, Vice-Chair, Leon County Commission
• Darryl Jones, School Board Member, Leon County Schools
• Judge Anthony Miller, Second Judicial Circuit

Members Absent: 
• Rocky Hanna, Superintendent, Leon County Schools
• Mark O’Bryant, Community Member

Staff Present: 
• Cecka Rose Green, Executive Director
• Dina Snider, Director of Finance and Operations
• Stephanie Eller Vaughn, Program Accountability and Research Manager
• Prisha Malone, Program and Quality Assurance Specialist
• Jacinta Clay, Administrative Services Manager
• Chris Roe, General Counsel

Location: 
Children’s Services Council of Leon County 
2002 Old St. Augustine Rd., Suite A-50, Tallahassee, FL 32301 

I. CALL TO ORDER
Chair Glenn called the meeting to order at 4:07 p.m.

II. ROLL CALL
Six (6) council members were present, and a quorum was established.

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Judge Miller moved approval of the agenda; Mr. Mitchell seconded. The agenda was approved
unanimously.

IV. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT
• Mr. John Conlin
• Ms. Peggy Bowen
• Ms. Mona Hamilton
• Ms. Emily Fritz
• Mr. Erwin Jackson

• Ms. Kelly Otte
• Mr. Robert Allen
• Ms. Tish Bevis
• Ms. D. Pandolfi

2



was approved unanimously.

VI. GENERAL COUNSEL UPDATE
There were no updates.

VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS

A. Finance and Budget
1. FLCLASS Intergovernmental Investment Pool

Mr. Mitchell recused himself from the discussion; Chair Glenn presented the resolution
granting Council approval to create investment accounts with FLCLASS. Mr. Jones
moved acceptance; Ms. Cummings seconded. There was no public comment. The
motion passed unanimously.

2. Truth in Millage (TRIM)
Mr. Mitchell opened the discussion by providing a review of the millage discussion that
occurred at the Finance and Budget Committee. He then moved to accept a roll-back
millage of .3477; Mr. Watts seconded.

Public comment provided by:
• Ms. Pam Wessling
• Mr. Rick Lockenbach
• Mr. Erwin Jackson
• Ms. Emily Fritz

Judge Miller abstained from voting, as required by Florida Statute 125.901. The motion 
was passed unanimously.  

3. FY 2023-24 Budget
Mr. Mitchell provided an overview of the corresponding budget for the approved
tentative millage rate. He then moved for approval; Ms. Cummings seconded.

Chair Glenn called for a brief recess to recognize former Council Member Liza McFadden
for her dedicated service to the council from May 2021 – April 2023.

The meeting was reconvened at 5:54 pm. There was no public comment and the motion 
to approve the tentative budget was approved unanimously.  

B. Family Resource Center (FRC) Management
Chair Glenn asked Ms. Green to provide a brief overview of the Council’s action at the June 26
meeting; Ms. McPhail then guided the Council through the revised procurement process and
scope of work for the FRC management ITN. The Council decided to table the discussion and
move the item to the September meeting.
Public comment was provided by:

• Mr. Erwin Jackson
• Ms. Kelly Otte

3

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
Mr. Jones moved approval of the consent agenda; Ms. Cummings seconded.  The Consent Agenda



VIII. Next Meeting  Dates
A. Council Strategic Planning Meeting – Monday, August 21, at 1:00 p.m.
B. Governing Council Meeting – Thursday, September 14, 2023, at 4:00 p.m.
C. First TRIM Hearing – Thursday, September 14, 2023, at 6:05 p.m.
D. Second TRIM Hearing – Thursday, September 28, 2023, at 5:15 p.m.

IX. Next Meeting Agenda
A. Small Investments for Partner Success (SIPS) applications review and approval
B. FRC Management ITN review and approval
C. 2024 Summer Bridge Program Funding Discussion

X. Member Comments
• Judge Miller
• Ms. Cummings
• Chair Glenn

XI. Adjourn
Meeting adjourned at 7:14 p.m.

4



Jul 31, 23

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Money Market Account 9,210,541.07
Operating 633,242.30

Total Checking/Savings 9,843,783.37

Total Current Assets 9,843,783.37

Other Assets
Security Deposits Asset 6,222.50

Total Other Assets 6,222.50

TOTAL ASSETS 9,850,005.87

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable -6,572.50

Other Current Liabilities
Employee Paid Benefits Clearing -2,341.22

Total Other Current Liabilities -2,341.22

Total Current Liabilities -8,913.72

Total Liabilities -8,913.72

Equity
Unrestricted Net Assets 4,609,783.47
Net Income 5,249,136.12

Total Equity 9,858,919.59

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 9,850,005.87

Children's Services Council of Leon County
Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2023

5



Oct '22 - Jul 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Ad Valorem Proceeds 7,572,329.19 7,632,396.32 -60,067.13 99.2%
Interest 148,622.70 10,057.10 138,565.60 1,477.8%

Total Income 7,720,951.89 7,642,453.42 78,498.47 101.0%

Expense
Compensation /Employee Benefits

Employee Benefits (Other) 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%
Health Insurance 61,244.02 120,500.00 -59,255.98 50.8%
Life Insurance 0.00 3,800.00 -3,800.00 0.0%
Payroll taxes 21,821.66 30,000.00 -8,178.34 72.7%
Retirement Contribution 51,355.64 88,000.00 -36,644.36 58.4%
Salaries 275,857.76 386,000.00 -110,142.24 71.5%

Total Compensation /Employee Benefits 410,279.08 630,300.00 -220,020.92 65.1%

Contractual Services
Accounting Fees 12,562.50 30,000.00 -17,437.50 41.9%
Audio/Video 879.00 0.00 879.00 100.0%
External Audit Fee 29,500.00 30,000.00 -500.00 98.3%
General Counsel (1099-MISC) 68,506.56 75,000.00 -6,493.44 91.3%
Grantwriting Services 0.00 50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%
Program Specialist & Admin. 50,000.00 60,000.00 -10,000.00 83.3%

Total Contractual Services 161,448.06 245,000.00 -83,551.94 65.9%

Maintenance and repair 2,200.00
Operations

Ad Valorem Collection Fees 0.00 230,771.89 -230,771.89 0.0%
Awards & Recognition 89.95 500.00 -410.05 18.0%
Communications 4,754.38 5,200.00 -445.62 91.4%
Community Awareness/Engagement 5,826.88 20,000.00 -14,173.12 29.1%
Dues & Subscription 8,956.28 15,000.00 -6,043.72 59.7%
Equipment 1,935.85 11,000.00 -9,064.15 17.6%
Furniture 87,928.87 85,000.00 2,928.87 103.4%
Insurance (Liab., D&O, WC) 15,863.55 17,500.00 -1,636.45 90.6%
IT Hardware 2,714.64 5,000.00 -2,285.36 54.3%
IT Services (Web & Email) 4,265.62 1,500.00 2,765.62 284.4%
Licenses & Fees 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
Misc expenses 5,252.93 5,000.00 252.93 105.1%
Occupancy (Rent, Util., Janito) 40,976.00 74,670.00 -33,694.00 54.9%
Office Supplies 3,052.59 5,200.00 -2,147.41 58.7%
Payroll processing / HR 9,926.49 10,000.00 -73.51 99.3%
Postage and Courier 410.40 750.00 -339.60 54.7%
Printing and Copying 521.23 2,000.00 -1,478.77 26.1%
Program & Financial Software 56,500.03 150,000.00 -93,499.97 37.7%
Public Relations 2,150.00 50,000.00 -47,850.00 4.3%
Publication (Legal Adv) 3,194.96 5,000.00 -1,805.04 63.9%
Research 0.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00 0.0%
Software 1,167.80 3,000.00 -1,832.20 38.9%
Sponsorship 5,800.00 8,000.00 -2,200.00 72.5%
Travel and Meetings

Conference, Convention, Meeting 5,534.44 12,000.00 -6,465.56 46.1%
Travel (mileage/tolls) 1,855.01 9,000.00 -7,144.99 20.6%
Travel and Meetings - Other 1,562.93

Total Travel and Meetings 8,952.38 21,000.00 -12,047.62 42.6%

Total Operations 270,240.83 731,091.89 -460,851.06 37.0%

Program Investments
Capacity Building 53,556.57 120,000.00 -66,443.43 44.6%
Innovation Funding 0.00 1,400,000.00 -1,400,000.00 0.0%
Priority Funding 1,500.00 7,502,906.30 -7,501,406.30 0.0%
Summer Programmatic Funding 1,552,445.31 1,710,000.00 -157,554.69 90.8%

Total Program Investments 1,607,501.88 10,732,906.30 -9,125,404.42 15.0%

Reserves/Community Grants 0.00 381,619.82 -381,619.82 0.0%
Security System 21,160.00 25,000.00 -3,840.00 84.6%

Total Expense 2,472,829.85 12,745,918.01 -10,273,088.16 19.4%

Net Ordinary Income 5,248,122.04 -5,103,464.59 10,351,586.63 -102.8%

Net Income 5,248,122.04 -5,103,464.59 10,351,586.63 -102.8%

Children's Services Council of Leon County
Income & Expense Budget vs. Actual

October 2022 through July 2023

*

*Line item was not adjusted for managed IT addition to operations; it is accounted in FY 2023-24 approved tentative budget.

6

CeckaRoseGreen
Highlight

CeckaRoseGreen
Highlight



Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Ad Valorem Proceeds 639.01 601,268.49 6,013,375.25 154,468.76 196,608.77 127,053.50 230,911.85
Interest 6,347.00 6,152.33 6,507.65 15,327.23 17,832.46 19,788.13 19,192.58

Total Income 6,986.01 607,420.82 6,019,882.90 169,795.99 214,441.23 146,841.63 250,104.43

Expense
Compensation /Employee Benefits

Health Insurance 3,318.51 3,318.51 3,300.81 3,318.51 8,051.68 7,996.28 7,996.28
Payroll taxes 1,454.52 2,060.98 2,865.53 2,648.75 2,083.70 1,935.41 1,910.72
Retirement Contribution 5,586.77 2,420.33 3,691.70 7,507.58 4,881.45 4,870.14 4,977.26
Salaries 19,230.76 24,769.22 37,153.83 25,140.11 25,153.84 25,688.89 25,442.30

Total Compensation /Employee Benefits 29,590.56 32,569.04 47,011.87 38,614.95 40,170.67 40,490.72 40,326.56

Contractual Services
Accounting Fees 1,125.00 0.00 1,987.50 1,312.50 0.00 2,812.50 0.00
Audio/Video 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
External Audit Fee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
General Counsel (1099-MISC) 11,266.00 9,449.00 18,015.25 0.00 0.00 19,975.31 0.00
Program Specialist & Admin. 5,000.00 5,000.00 10,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00

Total Contractual Services 17,391.00 14,449.00 30,002.75 6,312.50 0.00 32,787.81 0.00

Maintenance and repair 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,200.00 0.00
Operations

Awards & Recognition 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Communications 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,504.96 1,884.20 279.06
Community Awareness/Engagement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,883.60 1,943.28
Dues & Subscription 0.00 600.00 175.00 19.99 5,786.69 1,649.60 0.00
Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 988.10 0.00 947.75 0.00
Furniture 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,142.11 0.00 22,294.27 40,492.49
Insurance (Liab., D&O, WC) 0.00 0.00 14,494.00 0.00 1,169.55 0.00 0.00
IT Hardware 0.00 1,213.67 1,348.05 0.00 183.92 -31.00 0.00
IT Services (Web & Email) 0.00 273.80 161.19 154.50 154.50 523.86 524.46
Misc expenses 405.03 0.00 0.00 366.26 1,282.47 678.57 1,801.82
Occupancy (Rent, Util., Janito) 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,470.67 6,222.50 1,571.83 6,952.50
Office Supplies 0.00 39.08 0.00 0.00 300.00 480.36 614.94
Payroll processing / HR 1,251.58 1,273.64 1,910.46 1,313.64 1,273.64 1,273.64 1,288.64
Postage and Courier 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.20 359.25 0.00 25.20
Printing and Copying 134.99 27.52 145.66 76.44 136.62 0.00 0.00
Program & Financial Software 0.00 0.00 0.00 26,500.03 0.00 0.00 0.00
Public Relations 0.00 0.00 0.00 450.00 0.00 1,700.00 0.00
Publication (Legal Adv) 0.00 10.64 0.00 1,580.24 1,569.78 23.24 0.00
Software 79.85 79.14 80.83 97.65 92.85 137.19 128.30
Sponsorship 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Travel and Meetings

Conference, Convention, Meeting 1,631.64 15.00 282.45 3,256.35 0.00 0.00 0.00
Travel (mileage/tolls) 820.32 -44.64 0.00 1,079.33 0.00 0.00 19.40
Travel and Meetings - Other 0.00 0.00 640.00 229.98 5.95 687.00 0.00

Total Travel and Meetings 2,451.96 -29.64 922.45 4,565.66 5.95 687.00 19.40

Total Operations 4,323.41 3,487.85 19,237.64 68,238.49 20,042.68 37,704.11 54,070.09

Program Investments
Capacity Building 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,500.00 17,500.00
Priority Funding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Summer Programmatic Funding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,222.50 0.00

Total Program Investments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 23,722.50 17,500.00

Salaries & Wages - Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Security System 0.00 0.00 0.00 21,160.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unclassifed expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 273.72 -273.72

Total Expense 51,304.97 50,505.89 96,252.26 134,325.94 60,213.35 137,178.86 111,622.93

Net Ordinary Income -44,318.96 556,914.93 5,923,630.64 35,470.05 154,227.88 9,662.77 138,481.50

Net Income -44,318.96 556,914.93 5,923,630.64 35,470.05 154,227.88 9,662.77 138,481.50

Children's Services Council of Leon County
Income & Expense Report

October 2022 through July 2023

7



May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 TOTAL

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Ad Valorem Proceeds 72,438.91 171,430.21 4,134.44 7,572,329.19
Interest 19,857.56 18,842.42 18,775.34 148,622.70

Total Income 92,296.47 190,272.63 22,909.78 7,720,951.89

Expense
Compensation /Employee Benefits

Health Insurance 7,996.28 7,950.88 8,087.08 61,334.82
Payroll taxes 1,667.34 2,838.87 0.00 19,465.82
Retirement Contribution 4,977.26 4,595.62 8,610.81 52,118.92
Salaries 25,442.30 38,163.45 0.00 246,184.70

Total Compensation /Employee Benefits 40,083.18 53,548.82 16,697.89 379,104.26

Contractual Services
Accounting Fees 1,425.00 2,662.50 1,237.50 12,562.50
Audio/Video 0.00 469.00 410.00 879.00
External Audit Fee 0.00 29,500.00 0.00 29,500.00
General Counsel (1099-MISC) 3,894.00 3,586.25 2,320.75 68,506.56
Program Specialist & Admin. 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 50,000.00

Total Contractual Services 10,319.00 41,217.75 8,968.25 161,448.06

Maintenance and repair 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,200.00
Operations

Awards & Recognition 89.95 0.00 0.00 89.95
Communications 282.99 366.88 436.29 4,754.38
Community Awareness/Engagement 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,826.88
Dues & Subscription 0.00 300.00 425.00 8,956.28
Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,935.85
Furniture 0.00 0.00 0.00 87,928.87
Insurance (Liab., D&O, WC) 200.00 0.00 0.00 15,863.55
IT Hardware 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,714.64
IT Services (Web & Email) 533.69 1,407.31 532.31 4,265.62
Misc expenses -37.51 756.29 0.00 5,252.93
Occupancy (Rent, Util., Janito) 7,313.50 6,222.50 6,222.50 40,976.00
Office Supplies 1,115.15 0.00 503.06 3,052.59
Payroll processing / HR 0.00 0.00 341.25 9,926.49
Postage and Courier 0.00 12.75 0.00 410.40
Printing and Copying 0.00 0.00 0.00 521.23
Program & Financial Software 0.00 30,000.00 0.00 56,500.03
Public Relations 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,150.00
Publication (Legal Adv) 0.00 11.06 0.00 3,194.96
Software 130.70 177.10 164.19 1,167.80
Sponsorship 0.00 5,000.00 300.00 5,800.00
Travel and Meetings

Conference, Convention, Meeting 150.00 0.00 199.00 5,534.44
Travel (mileage/tolls) -19.40 0.00 0.00 1,855.01
Travel and Meetings - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,562.93

Total Travel and Meetings 130.60 0.00 199.00 8,952.38

Total Operations 9,759.07 44,253.89 9,123.60 270,240.83

Program Investments
Capacity Building 0.00 18,556.57 0.00 53,556.57
Priority Funding 0.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00
Summer Programmatic Funding 699,118.83 222,497.11 624,606.87 1,552,445.31

Total Program Investments 699,118.83 242,553.68 624,606.87 1,607,501.88

Salaries & Wages - Clearing 0.00 0.00 30,160.74 30,160.74
Security System 0.00 0.00 0.00 21,160.00
Unclassifed expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Expense 759,280.08 381,574.14 689,557.35 2,471,815.77

Net Ordinary Income -666,983.61 -191,301.51 -666,647.57 5,249,136.12

Net Income -666,983.61 -191,301.51 -666,647.57 5,249,136.12

8

Children's Services Council of Leon County
Income & Expense Report

October 2022 through July 2023



Aug 31, 23

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Money Market Account 9,078,114.30
Operating 256,118.93

Total Checking/Savings 9,334,233.23

Total Current Assets 9,334,233.23

Other Assets
Security Deposits Asset 6,222.50

Total Other Assets 6,222.50

TOTAL ASSETS 9,340,455.73

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable -6,572.50

Total Accounts Payable -6,572.50

Other Current Liabilities
Employee Paid Benefits Clearing

AFLAC 999.40
Dental & Vision Insurance -527.02
Group Term Life & Accidental -1,632.76
Long Term Disability -1,359.36
Supplemental Life & Accidental 336.96

Total Employee Paid Benefits Clearing -2,182.78

Total Other Current Liabilities -2,182.78

Total Current Liabilities -8,755.28

Total Liabilities -8,755.28

Equity
Unrestricted Net Assets 4,609,783.47
Net Income 4,739,427.54

Total Equity 9,349,211.01

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 9,340,455.73

Children's Services Council of Leon County
Balance Sheet

As of August 31, 2023

9



Oct '22 - Aug 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Ad Valorem Proceeds 7,576,326.28 7,632,396.32 -56,070.04 99.3%
Interest 166,230.70 10,057.10 156,173.60 1,652.9%

Total Income 7,742,556.98 7,642,453.42 100,103.56 101.3%

Expense
Compensation /Employee Benefits

Employee Benefits (Other) 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%
Health Insurance 69,240.30 120,500.00 -51,259.70 57.5%
Life Insurance 0.00 3,800.00 -3,800.00 0.0%
Payroll taxes 23,940.26 30,000.00 -6,059.74 79.8%
Retirement Contribution 57,584.04 88,000.00 -30,415.96 65.4%
Salaries 305,530.82 386,000.00 -80,469.18 79.2%

Total Compensation /Employee Benefits 456,295.42 630,300.00 -174,004.58 72.4%

Contractual Services
Accounting Fees 13,800.00 30,000.00 -16,200.00 46.0%
Audio/Video 1,348.00 0.00 1,348.00 100.0%
External Audit Fee 29,500.00 30,000.00 -500.00 98.3%
General Counsel (1099-MISC) 74,463.81 75,000.00 -536.19 99.3%
Grantwriting Services 0.00 50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%
Program Specialist & Admin. 60,000.00 60,000.00 0.00 100.0%

Total Contractual Services 179,111.81 245,000.00 -65,888.19 73.1%

Maintenance and repair 2,200.00
Operations

Ad Valorem Collection Fees 0.00 230,771.89 -230,771.89 0.0%
Awards & Recognition 164.90 500.00 -335.10 33.0%
Communications 5,210.02 5,200.00 10.02 100.2%
Community Awareness/Engagement 5,826.88 20,000.00 -14,173.12 29.1%
Dues & Subscription 10,481.10 15,000.00 -4,518.90 69.9%
Equipment 1,935.85 11,000.00 -9,064.15 17.6%
Furniture 87,928.87 85,000.00 2,928.87 103.4%
Insurance (Liab., D&O, WC) 15,863.55 17,500.00 -1,636.45 90.6%
IT Hardware 2,849.64 5,000.00 -2,150.36 57.0%
IT Services (Web & Email) 7,897.93 1,500.00 6,397.93 526.5%
Licenses & Fees 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
Misc expenses 5,327.93 5,000.00 327.93 106.6%
Occupancy (Rent, Util., Janito) 47,243.50 74,670.00 -27,426.50 63.3%
Office Supplies 3,080.43 5,200.00 -2,119.57 59.2%
Payroll processing / HR 10,251.49 10,000.00 251.49 102.5%
Postage and Courier 410.40 750.00 -339.60 54.7%
Printing and Copying 521.23 2,000.00 -1,478.77 26.1%
Program & Financial Software 56,500.03 150,000.00 -93,499.97 37.7%
Public Relations 2,150.00 50,000.00 -47,850.00 4.3%
Publication (Legal Adv) 3,194.96 5,000.00 -1,805.04 63.9%
Research 0.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00 0.0%
Software 1,331.82 3,000.00 -1,668.18 44.4%
Sponsorship 5,800.00 8,000.00 -2,200.00 72.5%
Travel and Meetings

Conference, Convention, Meeting 5,534.44 12,000.00 -6,465.56 46.1%
Travel (mileage/tolls) 1,855.01 9,000.00 -7,144.99 20.6%
Travel and Meetings - Other 1,758.05

Total Travel and Meetings 9,147.50 21,000.00 -11,852.50 43.6%

Total Operations 283,118.03 731,091.89 -447,973.86 38.7%

Children's Services Council of Leon County
Income & Expense Budget vs. Actual

October 2022 through August 2023

*Line item was not adjusted for managed IT services for operations; it is accounted in FY 2023-24 budget.

10

CeckaRoseGreen
Highlight

CeckaRoseGreen
Highlight



Oct '22 - Aug 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Program Investments
Capacity Building 72,113.14 120,000.00 -47,886.86 60.1%
Family Supports 245,279.80
Innovation Funding 0.00 1,400,000.00 -1,400,000.00 0.0%
Priority Funding 1,500.00 7,502,906.30 -7,501,406.30 0.0%
Summer Programmatic Funding 1,742,351.24 1,710,000.00 32,351.24 101.9%

Total Program Investments 2,061,244.18 10,732,906.30 -8,671,662.12 19.2%

Reserves/Community Grants 0.00 381,619.82 -381,619.82 0.0%
Security System 21,160.00 25,000.00 -3,840.00 84.6%

Total Expense 3,003,129.44 12,745,918.01 -9,742,788.57 23.6%

Net Ordinary Income 4,739,427.54 -5,103,464.59 9,842,892.13 -92.9%

Net Income 4,739,427.54 -5,103,464.59 9,842,892.13 -92.9%

11

Children's Services Council of Leon County
Income & Expense Budget vs. Actual

October 2022 through August 2023



Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Ad Valorem Proceeds 639.01 601,268.49 6,013,375.25 154,468.76 196,608.77 127,053.50
Interest 6,347.00 6,152.33 6,507.65 15,327.23 17,832.46 19,788.13

Total Income 6,986.01 607,420.82 6,019,882.90 169,795.99 214,441.23 146,841.63

Expense
Compensation /Employee Benefits

Health Insurance 3,318.51 3,318.51 3,300.81 3,318.51 8,051.68 7,996.28
Payroll taxes 1,454.52 2,060.98 2,865.53 2,648.75 2,083.70 1,935.41
Retirement Contribution 5,586.77 2,420.33 3,691.70 7,507.58 4,881.45 4,870.14
Salaries 19,230.76 24,769.22 37,153.83 25,140.11 25,153.84 25,688.89

Total Compensation /Employee Benefits 29,590.56 32,569.04 47,011.87 38,614.95 40,170.67 40,490.72

Contractual Services
Accounting Fees 1,125.00 0.00 1,987.50 1,312.50 0.00 2,812.50
Audio/Video 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
External Audit Fee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
General Counsel (1099-MISC) 11,266.00 9,449.00 18,015.25 0.00 0.00 19,975.31
Program Specialist & Admin. 5,000.00 5,000.00 10,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 10,000.00

Total Contractual Services 17,391.00 14,449.00 30,002.75 6,312.50 0.00 32,787.81

Maintenance and repair 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,200.00
Operations

Awards & Recognition 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Communications 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,504.96 1,884.20
Community Awareness/Engagement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,883.60
Dues & Subscription 0.00 600.00 175.00 19.99 5,786.69 1,649.60
Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 988.10 0.00 947.75
Furniture 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,142.11 0.00 22,294.27
Insurance (Liab., D&O, WC) 0.00 0.00 14,494.00 0.00 1,169.55 0.00
IT Hardware 0.00 1,213.67 1,348.05 0.00 183.92 -31.00
IT Services (Web & Email) 0.00 273.80 161.19 154.50 154.50 523.86
Misc expenses 405.03 0.00 0.00 366.26 1,282.47 678.57
Occupancy (Rent, Util., Janito) 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,470.67 6,222.50 1,571.83
Office Supplies 0.00 39.08 0.00 0.00 300.00 480.36
Payroll processing / HR 1,251.58 1,273.64 1,910.46 1,313.64 1,273.64 1,273.64
Postage and Courier 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.20 359.25 0.00
Printing and Copying 134.99 27.52 145.66 76.44 136.62 0.00
Program & Financial Software 0.00 0.00 0.00 26,500.03 0.00 0.00
Public Relations 0.00 0.00 0.00 450.00 0.00 1,700.00
Publication (Legal Adv) 0.00 10.64 0.00 1,580.24 1,569.78 23.24
Software 79.85 79.14 80.83 97.65 92.85 137.19
Sponsorship 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00
Travel and Meetings

Conference, Convention, Meeting 1,631.64 15.00 282.45 3,256.35 0.00 0.00
Travel (mileage/tolls) 820.32 -44.64 0.00 1,079.33 0.00 0.00
Travel and Meetings - Other 0.00 0.00 640.00 229.98 5.95 687.00

Total Travel and Meetings 2,451.96 -29.64 922.45 4,565.66 5.95 687.00

Total Operations 4,323.41 3,487.85 19,237.64 68,238.49 20,042.68 37,704.11

Program Investments
Capacity Building 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,500.00
Family Supports 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Priority Funding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Summer Programmatic Funding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,222.50

Total Program Investments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 23,722.50

Security System 0.00 0.00 0.00 21,160.00 0.00 0.00
Unclassifed expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 273.72

Total Expense 51,304.97 50,505.89 96,252.26 134,325.94 60,213.35 137,178.86

Net Ordinary Income -44,318.96 556,914.93 5,923,630.64 35,470.05 154,227.88 9,662.77

Net Income -44,318.96 556,914.93 5,923,630.64 35,470.05 154,227.88 9,662.77

Children's Services Council of Leon County
Income & Expense Report

October 2022 through August 2023

12



Apr 23 May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23 TOTAL

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Ad Valorem Proceeds 230,911.85 72,438.91 171,430.21 4,134.44 3,997.09 7,576,326.28
Interest 19,192.58 19,857.56 18,842.42 18,775.34 17,608.00 166,230.70

Total Income 250,104.43 92,296.47 190,272.63 22,909.78 21,605.09 7,742,556.98

Expense
Compensation /Employee Benefits

Health Insurance 7,996.28 7,996.28 7,950.88 7,996.28 7,996.28 69,240.30
Payroll taxes 1,910.72 1,667.34 2,838.87 2,355.84 2,118.60 23,940.26
Retirement Contribution 4,977.26 4,977.26 4,595.62 7,847.53 6,228.40 57,584.04
Salaries 25,442.30 25,442.30 38,163.45 29,673.06 29,673.06 305,530.82

Total Compensation /Employee Benefits 40,326.56 40,083.18 53,548.82 47,872.71 46,016.34 456,295.42

Contractual Services
Accounting Fees 0.00 1,425.00 2,662.50 1,237.50 1,237.50 13,800.00
Audio/Video 0.00 0.00 469.00 410.00 469.00 1,348.00
External Audit Fee 0.00 0.00 29,500.00 0.00 0.00 29,500.00
General Counsel (1099-MISC) 0.00 3,894.00 3,586.25 2,320.75 5,957.25 74,463.81
Program Specialist & Admin. 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 10,000.00 60,000.00

Total Contractual Services 0.00 10,319.00 41,217.75 8,968.25 17,663.75 179,111.81

Maintenance and repair 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,200.00
Operations

Awards & Recognition 0.00 89.95 0.00 0.00 74.95 164.90
Communications 279.06 282.99 366.88 436.29 455.64 5,210.02
Community Awareness/Engagement 1,943.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,826.88
Dues & Subscription 0.00 0.00 300.00 425.00 1,524.82 10,481.10
Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,935.85
Furniture 40,492.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 87,928.87
Insurance (Liab., D&O, WC) 0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,863.55
IT Hardware 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 135.00 2,849.64
IT Services (Web & Email) 524.46 533.69 1,407.31 532.31 3,632.31 7,897.93
Misc expenses 1,801.82 -37.51 756.29 0.00 75.00 5,327.93
Occupancy (Rent, Util., Janito) 6,952.50 7,313.50 6,222.50 6,222.50 6,267.50 47,243.50
Office Supplies 614.94 1,115.15 0.00 503.06 27.84 3,080.43
Payroll processing / HR 1,288.64 0.00 0.00 341.25 325.00 10,251.49
Postage and Courier 25.20 0.00 12.75 0.00 0.00 410.40
Printing and Copying 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 521.23
Program & Financial Software 0.00 0.00 30,000.00 0.00 0.00 56,500.03
Public Relations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,150.00
Publication (Legal Adv) 0.00 0.00 11.06 0.00 0.00 3,194.96
Software 128.30 130.70 177.10 164.19 164.02 1,331.82
Sponsorship 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 300.00 0.00 5,800.00
Travel and Meetings

Conference, Convention, Meeting 0.00 150.00 0.00 199.00 0.00 5,534.44
Travel (mileage/tolls) 19.40 -19.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,855.01
Travel and Meetings - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 195.12 1,758.05

Total Travel and Meetings 19.40 130.60 0.00 199.00 195.12 9,147.50

Total Operations 54,070.09 9,759.07 44,253.89 9,123.60 12,877.20 283,118.03

Program Investments
Capacity Building 17,500.00 0.00 18,556.57 0.00 18,556.57 72,113.14
Family Supports 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 245,279.80 245,279.80
Priority Funding 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00
Summer Programmatic Funding 0.00 699,118.83 222,497.11 624,606.87 189,905.93 1,742,351.24

Total Program Investments 17,500.00 699,118.83 242,553.68 624,606.87 453,742.30 2,061,244.18

Security System 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 21,160.00
Unclassifed expenses -273.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Expense 111,622.93 759,280.08 381,574.14 690,571.43 530,299.59 3,003,129.44

Net Ordinary Income 138,481.50 -666,983.61 -191,301.51 -667,661.65 -508,694.50 4,739,427.54

Net Income 138,481.50 -666,983.61 -191,301.51 -667,661.65 -508,694.50 4,739,427.54

13

Children's Services Council of Leon County
Income & Expense Report

October 2022 through August 2023



Executive Director’s Report 
Governing Council Meeting | Thursday, September 11, 2023 

CSC Leon Council Member Appointments/Vacancies – No updates from the Governor’s Office; FACCT is 
working with the Appointment’s Office to obtain a status for all CSCs awaiting appointments of new 
Council Members. 

Community Outreach and Connections – During the months of July, August and September, CSC Leon 
connected with the following persons/entities: 

• Ms. Green met with former State Senator Loranne Ausley and representatives of the Institute for
Child Success to discuss models for early childhood support and family engagement.

• Ms. Green participated in two panels and a speaking engagement—
o Community Foundation of North Florida (CFNF) Education Panel for their Board Members and

contributors. Panelists included Dr. Michelle Gayle and Brooke Brunner, Leon County Schools;
and Dr. Brittany Birken, Federal Reserve Bank.

o Children’s Home Society of Florida Annual Meeting, panel on Community Solutions. Panelists
included State Senator Tom Wright, District 8; Neil Hamilton, VP of Market Intelligence, Orlando
Economic Partnership; and Zenani Johnson, Equality Opportunity Coordinator, Florida Chamber

o Leadership Tallahassee (LT) September Monthly Membership Luncheon, providing an update on
the CSC Leon, including our priorities, timeline of activities, program funding, etc.

Integrated Information Systems Solution – SAMIS was used for the first SIPS applications for Quarter 4 
(2023) and will be used for data reporting for recently funded programming (Youth Mentoring and 
Family Strengthening/Parent Education). Implementation continues and the Council will receive a 
demonstration at a future Council Meeting. 

New Worlds Reading Initiative – CSC Leon is in the process of planning its first partner event with New 
Worlds Reading during the first quarter of the new fiscal year. By way of reminder, this FREE literacy 
program seeks to enroll eligible students in grades kindergarten through 5th to receive a new book each 
month via mail to assist with building the student’s personalized libraries based on their interest, 
provide families with practical and supporting material to help build reading confidence, reinforce the 
science of reading strategies, and to help support the successful launching of reading skills and a love of 
reading. 

World of Work (W.O.W.) – CSC Leon is a Silver Sponsor for North Florida Worlds of Work, to be held on 
Thursday, October 19 – 20; W.O.W. will be a fun, educational, hands-on opportunity for Leon County 
students to become familiar with a broad overview of career options. North Florida W.O.W. is a project 
of the Talent Development Council, a local collaborative of organizations focused on creating a more 
efficient workforce development ecosystem, developing a pipeline of highly skilled talent, and 
promoting access to training and employment opportunities. The collaborative includes CareerSource 
Capital Region, Lively Technical College, Tallahassee Community College, The Greater Tallahassee 
Chamber of Commerce, and The Tallahassee-Leon County Office of Economic Vitality. 

Submitted by: 
Cecka Rose Green, CPM 
Executive Director 

14



1

From: Cecka Rose Green
Sent: Tuesday, September 5, 2023 5:33 PM
To: CSC Leon BrainTrust
Subject: DEADLINE APPROACHING - ATTENTION: FRC procurement updated and links to tours
Attachments: REVISED-CSC-Leon-FRC-Management-ITN (August 2023, Version 3).docx; REVISED-Family-

Resources-Centers-SOW (August 2023, Version 3).docx

Importance: High

Dear Council Members— 

Happy September! I hope each of you had a great Labor Day weekend and are still basking in the ambience of not one, but 
TWO football team wins (Go Rattlers! Go Seminoles!) 

What follows is a gentle reminder about the FRC ITN that will be discussed and, hopefully, approved at the September 14 
meeting. And, let me take a moment to thank those of you who provided feedback on and asked questions about the 
previously distributed drafts of the FRC Management Statement of Work and Procurement Instrument. 

Now, staff has reviewed those drafts and made some additional edits; those updated DRAFTS are attached to this email 
and will be included in your packet for next week’s meeting.  

What follows is a list of questions that we ask you be prepared to consider during the meeting, which we hope will allow us 
to move forward with this investment in our community.  

1. Does the revised draft SOW provide ample background and information for the creation and operation of Family 
Resource Centers (FRCs) to meet the Council’s expectations? If not, provide specific items suggested for
inclusion.
 We request any suggestions be shared with staff in advance so we can be prepared to share with all

Council Members during the meeting on September 14.

2. Does the Council believe that the following terms are achievable and properly resourced?
 Establish a minimum of two FRCs, with the option to establish a third FRC upon successful

implementation of the first two
 Contract dates of 2/1/2024—9/30/2026

i. First FRC operational by October 2024
ii. Second FRC operational by June 2025
iii. Third FRC (only if first two are deemed successful) operational by April 2026

 Maximum investment $4 million over the defined years

3. Are the “minimum qualifications of vendors” as stated in the draft ITN congruent with the expectations of the
Council?
 ITN, Section I.C (page 3)

4. How does the Council want to make appointments to the (a.) Evaluation Team and (b.) Negotiation Team?
 Will each team include any members of the public?
 Will all Council Members (a.) serve in some capacity, (b.) serve on both teams or (c.) be split between

teams?

15



2

5. What should the point values be for each evaluation criteria described in the draft ITN?
 ITN, Section IV.A (page 8)

Once we have the meeting packet compiled and ready to post, I will send it to you with additional insight regarding the 
agenda. As you are doing this last review before the meeting, please don’t hesitate to contact me or Holly (procurement 
manager) with any questions you have. Also, remember to provide us with your edits, comments, and/or concerns by this 
Thursday, September 7, at 1:00 p.m. 

Thanks, and have a wonderful week! 

Best, Cecka  

Cecka Rose Green, CPM (she/her) 
Executive Director 

Children’s Services Council of Leon County 
 cgreen@cscleon.org |  850.597.0863 
 www.cscleon.org | LinkedIn : FB : IG : TW : 
@CeckaRoseGreen 

* Please be advised that Florida has a broad public records law and all 
correspondence to me via email may be subject to disclosure. Under Florida 
records law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail 
address released in response to a public-records request, do not send electronic 
mail to this entity. Instead, contact me by phone or in writing. 

From: Cecka Rose Green  
Sent: Monday, August 7, 2023 1:54 PM 
To: CSC Leon BrainTrust <CSCLeonBrainTrust@CSCLEON.ORG> 
Subject: ATTENTION: FRC procurement updated and links to tours 
Importance: High 

Good afternoon, Council Members— 

As a follow up to the last Council meeting on July 20, attached are several items for your review and consideration 
at the September 14 meeting. Holly has provided a detailed description of the materials, as well as a link to the 
virtual tours of existing FRCs. I will discuss this during the August 21 planning meeting to ensure you know exactly 
what will occur at the September meeting for this item. 

By way of reminder, we were going to discuss this during the planning meeting; however, we have a robust agenda 
for that meeting, and we want to ensure you have ample time to review the attached information, view the tours and 
discuss for full clarity prior to moving forward. So, with Chair Glenn’s approval, we will agenda this review and 
discussion for September. 

Please let us know if you have any questions.  

Thank you!! 

Cecka 

Hello all, 

16



3

Attached is the most current draft of the FRC Management ITN and Statement of Work. These 
documents include not only the revisions that were presented at the last meeting but 
additional revisions requested by Council Members during that meeting. You will also find 
sections highlighted for Council discussion as we move forward. While the Council 
Retreat/Strategic Planning session scheduled for August 21 will include in depth discussion on 
our future priorities and how to manage procurements, we will NOT dive deep into the specifics 
of this ITN. Instead, this will be placed on the agenda for September 14.  

As you read through these documents, please feel to suggest revisions using either the Track 
Changes or Comment feature, or to send comments via email by the end of August.  

Finally, many of you requested a virtual tour of a sample FRC. While each FRC is unique, you can 
definitely get a sense of what they have to offer by clicking on the link below and scrolling down to 
“Family Resource Center Videos.”  

NFSN | Family Support Program 
nationalfamilysupportnetwork.org 

Thank you! Holly 

Cecka Rose Green, CPM (she/her) 
Executive Director 

Children’s Services Council of Leon County 
 cgreen@cscleon.org |  850.597.0863 
 www.cscleon.org | LinkedIn : FB : IG : TW : 
@CeckaRoseGreen 

* Please be advised that Florida has a broad public records law and all 
correspondence to me via email may be subject to disclosure. Under Florida 
records law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail 
address released in response to a public-records request, do not send electronic 
mail to this entity. Instead, contact me by phone or in writing. 

17



Family Resource Center Management 
Invitation to Negotiate 

Issue Date: September 18, 2023 
Bidder’s Conference: September 26, 2023, 3:00 p.m. 

Questions Deadline: October 5, 2023 by 5:00 p.m. 
Question Responses Posted: October 9, 2023 

Response Deadline: October 30, 2023 by 2:00 p.m. 
Estimated Notice of Intent to Award: December 21, 2023 

Do not contact the CSC Leon Executive Director, any member of the Council or their respective staff 
regarding this request. Direct all correspondence or inquiries during the ITN process to the following 
Purchasing Official: 

Holly McPhail, Procurement Officer 
Children’s Services Council of Leon County 

2002 Old St. Augustine Road, Bldg. A, Suite 50 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

procurement@cscleon.org 

18

mailto:procurement@cscleon.org


SECTION I: INTRODUCTION 

A. ITN OBJECTIVE AND OVERVIEW

CSC Leon seeks to establish through this Invitation to Negotiate (ITN) a contract with a single entity to 
establish and manage Family Resource Centers (FRCs) located in targeted neighborhoods (“Contract”). 

FRCs operate using a set of nationally recognized standards that focus on collaborating with families to 
solve problems utilizing a strengths-based approach and serve as a resource hub where families can 
access formal and informal supports to promote their health and well-being. Core service provision will 
rely on community partnerships to ensure availability at commencement of an FRC opening and 
throughout its operation. Core services are focused on increasing family protective factors and the 
prevention of child maltreatment.  

A draft Statement of Work (“SOW”) is attached as Exhibit I. The final SOW will be developed during the 
negotiation phase of this ITN. The draft SOW details the expectations of the selected Vendor to serve as 
the Managing Agency to establish and operate a minimum of two (2) Family Resource Centers (FRCs) in 
Leon County during this initial contract, with the possibility of a third FRC upon demonstration of 
success. Additional FRCs will be based on need in subsequent renewals. CSC Leon has allocated up to $4 
million for the duration of the initial Contract (February 1, 2024, - September 30, 2026) to achieve the 
objectives outlined in the ITN.  

B. BACKGROUND OF ORGANIZATION

The Children’s Services Council of Leon County (CSC Leon) is a catalyst for positive change to improve 
the lives and outcomes of children, youth, and families in the local community. Established as an 
independent special district by the voters of Leon County in 2020, CSC Leon provides funding through ad 
valorem taxation to organizations that increase school readiness, provide school-age supports and 
reduce juvenile crime; improve child physical and mental health, while reducing adverse childhood 
experiences; and provide youth development opportunities, increase food and housing stability, and 
support caregivers. At its core, CSC Leon seeks to fund programs based on the following values: 
inclusive, data-driven, equitable, collaborative, and innovative. By funding and making available 
prevention and early intervention services while using a results-based accountability framework, CSC 
Leon’s ultimate goal is to ensure all children and youth in Leon County are socially, emotionally, and 
physically equipped to reach their full potential.  

One of CSC Leon’s first tasks was to identify and assess the needs of the children in the County. In 
November 2021, CSC Leon contracted with a third-party research firm to conduct a comprehensive asset 
and needs assessment of the community resources available to meet the varying needs of children, 
youth and families. That work concluded in June 2022, identifying the need for improved access to 
services, despite there being more than 1,000 providers servicing children, youth and families in Leon 
County.  

Due to access barriers, namely transportation, the true potential of many of these providers is not 
realized. Further, these barriers perpetuate inequities in the community and limit the affected 
community members from achieving their true potential. To enhance access to services and promote 
equity across Leon County, CSC Leon seeks to establish neighborhood hubs, or “Family Resource 

19



Centers,” as a solution to collocate services directly in neighborhoods to serve as one-stop shops for 
children and family services.   

C. MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS OF VENDORS

Any entity (e.g., nonprofit, for profit, government or university, etc.) is eligible to submit a proposal 
provided the Vendor is able to demonstrate at least five years of experience providing FRC management 
services or those materially similar to the requirements specified in the SOW.  

D. PURCHASING OFFICIAL AND “QUIET PERIOD”

The Purchasing Official is identified on the ITN cover page. Any person requiring special Accommodation 
due to a disability should contact the Purchasing Official.  

All Vendor communications regarding the ITN shall be limited to the Purchasing Official. There is a “quiet 
period” between the date the ITN is advertised and the date the recommended award (or cancellation) 
has been announced. During the quiet period, NO ONE acting on Vendor’s behalf may engage in any 
written or verbal communication or other attempts to influence anyone else at CSC Leon regarding this 
ITN, the merits of the Vendor, or whether CSC Leon should award the Contract to the Vendor. This 
includes staff members, evaluation team members, and council members. Any unauthorized contact 
may disqualify the Vendor from further consideration. 

SECTION II: SOLICITATION PROCESS 

A. OVERVIEW

This ITN is a method of competitive solicitation under CSC Leon’s Purchasing Regulation. Those 
interested in submitting a Response are to comply with all terms and conditions described in this 
solicitation. CSC Leon will hold a public opening of the Responses at the date, time, and location 
provided in the Timeline of Events. 

The ITN process is divided into multiple phases: the evaluation phase, the negotiation phase, and the 
final decision phase. During the evaluation phase, CSC Leon will appoint an “Evaluation Team” to 
evaluate all Responses, except those deemed non-responsive, against specific evaluation criteria to 
establish a competitive range of Responses reasonably susceptible of award. CSC Leon will then select 
one or more Vendors within the competitive range with which to commence negotiations. If no 
Responses are in the competitive range, CSC Leon reserves the right to cancel this ITN. 

For the negotiation phase, CSC Leon will appoint a “Negotiation Team” that may include 
representatives from the “Evaluation Team.” The Negotiation Team will hold closed presentations and 
negotiations with one or more Vendors whose evaluated Responses were determined to be within the 
competitive range. During this phase, the Negotiation Team may request revised Responses and final 
Responses (best and final offer or “BAFO”) based on the negotiations, including final contract terms 
should a BAFO be accepted.  

Once negotiations have concluded and all BAFO(s) received and reviewed, CSC Leon will enter into the 
final decision phase. The Negotiation Team will host a public meeting to formulate a recommendation 
for Contract award to the full CSC Leon Governing Council. The full council holds final decision-making 
authority. 

20



B. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

Submit all questions about the ITN in writing to the Purchasing Official via email. The deadline for 
submission of questions is reflected in the Timeline of Events. 

CSC Leon reserves the right to accept or reject any or all requests for clarification, either in whole or in 
part, and may require requests to be clarified or supplemented through additional written submissions. 
Vendors will be notified of the rejection of their request for clarification. Oral requests for clarification 
will not be accepted.  

CSC Leon’s responses to questions will be posted on the CSC Leon website at 
www.cscleon.org/announcements. Vendors unable to download responses should direct their requests 
for hard copies via e-mail to the Purchasing Official. Answers to questions will be published as an 
addendum to and, as such, an integral part of this ITN.  

CSC Leon does not guarantee the validity or reliability of information obtained from other sources. If it 
becomes necessary to revise any part of this ITN, an addendum will be posted on the CSC Leon website 
at www.cscleon.org/announcements. The Vendor is responsible for checking the website for any 
addenda or clarifications.  

C. TIMELINE OF EVENTS

The table below contains the anticipated timeline of events for this solicitation. The dates and 
times are subject to change. The Vendor is responsible for ensuring that CSC Leon receives 
all required documentation by the dates and times (Eastern time) specified below (or as revised 
by ITN addenda). 

ACTIVITY DATE(S) 
Release Procurement Monday, September 18 
Bidder’s Conference (via Zoom) Tuesday, September 26, 3 p.m.  
Written Question Deadline  Thursday, October 5, 5 p.m. 
Answers to Questions Posted  Monday, October 9, by 5 p.m. 
Proposals Due Monday, October 30, by 2 p.m. 
Public Opening of all Responses (livestreamed on 
YouTube) 

Monday, October 30, at 3 p.m. 

Evaluations Complete Thursday, November 9 
Evaluation Results & Selection of Vendors to Advance to 
Negotiations (Public Meeting) 

Monday, November 13, 4 p.m. 

Vendor Presentations Monday-Tuesday, November 27-28 
(Times, TBA) 

Negotiation Team (Closed) Strategy Session Tuesday, November 28 
Best & Final Due Wednesday, December 6, by 12:00 p.m. 
Final Procurement Results (Public Meeting) Tuesday, December 19, 3:00 p.m. 
Intent to Award Issued by Council Thursday, December 21, 4:00 p.m. 
Contract Approval by Council Thursday, January 18, 2024, 4:00 p.m. 
Anticipated Contract Start Date  Thursday, February 1, 2024 
Expansion Feasibility Study Completed by Tuesday, October 1, 2025 
Renewal Eligibility Assessment  Completed by Friday, April 10, 2026  
Initial Contract End Date  Tuesday, September 30, 2026  

21

http://www.cscleon.org/announcements
http://www.cscleon.org/announcements


D. RESPONSE SUBMITTAL AND DEADLINE

Submit FIVE (5) bound copies and one electronic copy on a flash drive via postal or commercial courier 
services of the complete Response by the deadline indicated in the Timeline of Events.   

Submit Responses to CSC Leon care of the Purchasing Official at the delivery address reflected on the 
ITN cover page. Facsimile transmissions will not be accepted. All bound responses must be submitted in 
a sealed envelope or box and must be marked “ITN for CSC Leon Family Resource Center Management.” 
CSC Leon accepts no responsibility whatsoever for failure to deliver or late delivery by postal or 
commercial courier services. Failure by postal or commercial courier services to meet the response 
deadline may result in disqualification.    

E. CSC LEON NOT LIABLE FOR VENDOR’S COST

CSC Leon shall not be liable or responsible for any costs incurred by any Vendor for preparing and 
submitting any response to this ITN, attending any presentation, or for any other activities or 
occurrences related in any way to this ITN on or prior to the execution of a contract.   

F. DISCLOSURE OF CONTENTS

All material submitted by Vendors shall become the property of CSC Leon and will not be returned. 
Responses submitted may be reviewed and evaluated by persons designated by CSC Leon, in its sole 
discretion. Records made and received by CSC Leon in connection with this ITN are public records and 
must be furnished and disclosed to any person under a request to inspect or copy such documents or 
records, pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.    

If information is provided that could reasonably be ruled a “trade secret” as defined in Section 812.081, 
Florida Statutes, include such information in a separate attachment clearly marked – “Trade Secret 
Information.” Include a table of contents within this attachment with a detailed listing of and 
explanation for EACH item marked as a “trade secret.”    

Designation of items as “trade secret” by Vendors is not dispositive and does not guarantee that the 
items will not ultimately be disclosed pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. The State of Florida 
places a high priority on the public’s right of access to governmental meetings and records. By 
submitting a response, each Vendor further understands and agrees that CSC Leon shall have the right 
to use any and all information, records, documentation, or items, including any derivation or adaptation 
thereof or knowledge gained thereby, presented by any Vendor in connection with this ITN in 
negotiating and entering into any contract or for any purpose. CSC Leon shall have such rights regardless 
of whether CSC Leon enters into any contract with such Vendor or any Vendor under this ITN, 
successfully negotiates any contract with any Vendor, rejects any or all responses to this ITN, amends or 
withdraws this ITN at any time, or otherwise satisfies its needs through alternative means.    

G. RIGHT TO CANCEL

CSC Leon, in its sole discretion, may cancel this ITN at any time and for any reason. Issuance of this ITN 
in no way constitutes a commitment by or obligation of CSC Leon to enter into any contract, and CSC 
Leon may, in its sole discretion, reject all Responses to this ITN for any reason whatsoever.   

22



H. RESPONSIVENESS AND RESPONSIBILITY

CSC Leon will be the sole judge of a Vendor’s responsiveness. CSC Leon will reject any Response that it 
deems non-responsive; provided, however, that CSC Leon may also waive any minor defect in a 
Response or deviation from the ITN requirements. CSC Leon will reject the Response of any Vendor it 
deems non-responsible.  

I. ITN SPECIFICATIONS PROTEST PROCESS

Any protest of the terms of this solicitation or the award of any contract shall be filed via email to the 
Purchasing Official within five calendar days after the advertisement of the solicitation. A protest must 
state with particularity the facts and law upon which it based. Failure to file a timely protest shall 
constitute a waiver of any pre-award challenges. 

SECTION III: RESPONSE FORMAT AND CONTENTS 

Prepare the Response in a clear, comprehensive, and concise manner with five separately tabbed 
sections, A through G. Do not include any appendix or attachment beyond these sections. Attachments 
within sections are permissible, e.g., resumes within Tab B, letters of support with Tab C, etc.. Respond 
using no smaller than 12-point font. Tables and graphs are exempt from the font requirement but must 
be readable.   

A. COVER LETTER

Address the cover letter to the Purchasing Official. Identify the Vendor’s name and principal address. 
Provide the name, telephone number and email address of the person authorized to represent the 
Vendor regarding all matters related to the ITN. Explain very briefly how the Vendor satisfies the 
minimum qualifications to respond (see Section I.C).  Affirm that the Vendor has thoroughly reviewed 
the ITN and agrees to provide the selected services set forth in the SOW if awarded a Contract. If the 
Response includes any alleged trade secrets, confirm compliance with Section II.F.  

Behind the cover letter, include the executed original of the completed ITN Form A, Service 
Requirement: Disclosures and Affirmation Statement. Failure to include the executed form will result in 
the Response being deemed non-responsive. 

B. RELEVANT EXPERIENCE & BACKGROUND

1. Describe the primary Vendor’s background and mission.
2. Detail the primary Vendor’s specialized qualifications for providing family-centered services and

previous work experience managing “family resource centers” as defined in the SOW.
3. Describe the primary Vendor’s financial capability to provide services. Be specific. Attach

evidence of current financial details, such as portions of financial statements, and a copy of your
most current annual operating budget.

4. Describe any experience the Vendor or key personnel previously had with CSC Leon, other
Children’s Services Councils in Florida, or any entity seeking to create one. Please disclose the
entity with whom you worked and their primary contact (name, phone number, and email
address) and the scope of services.

5. Provide primary office location(s) and size (number of offices and employees).

23



6. Include a current organizational chart of the primary Vendor’s team, clearly identifying key
personnel assigned to the project and showing the supervisory chain of command.

7. Provide up to three letters of reference from entities that have funded the Vendor for similar
services within the last five years.

C. COLLABORATIVE PARTNERS

1. List each collaborative partner that will be used for the provision of services described in section
C. For each partner, include:

a. Specific mission of the partner.
b. Brief summary of their role, i.e. what service they will provide.
c. Any specialized qualifications for providing the identified service.
d. Previous work experience in this area of service.

2. Include a letter of support from each partner identified confirming service provision should a
contract be awarded and detailing compensation agreement (e.g., subcontract, in-kind
provision, etc.)

D. SUGGESTED LOCATIONS

1. Identify up to four (4) feasible locations for the creation of an FRCs. Final locations will be
determined during the negotiation phase.

2. For each, include a detailed description of the neighborhood, why the proposed location is ideal
for the creation of an FRC, and how any transportation barriers will be addressed to ensure
access, as referenced in the CSC Leon 2022 Needs Assessment.

3. Detail the proposed hours of operation you anticipate offering as part of the FRC establishment
and provide justification based on the needs of the local neighborhood.

4. Attach letters of support from nearby service providers and/or businesses, if applicable.
5. Ensure proposed pricing (section F) details the cost of building out at least two of the proposed

locations. Note if additional FRCs can be established in the proposed timeline and within the
budget.

E. PROGRAM DESIGN

1. Explain in detail how Vendor proposes to develop, deliver and manage the services outlined in
the SOW under Program Design, B-F. Label each response accordingly.

a. Vendor will be evaluated on how well the Response demonstrates use of the national
standards.

2. Include in detail how Vendor proposes to recruit the minimum number of expected “drop in”
and “member” families.

a. Vendor may propose their own terms to differentiate between the two types of
participants, so long as the general definition si the same.

3. Provide a detailed staffing plan in accordance with the SOW (Section III.K) that supports the
program design as described above and ensures the appropriate data collection, entry and
reporting will occur in accordance with the ITN goals.

a. Vendor must include a graphical organizational chart identifying new positions should
the contract be awarded and the supervisory relationship with the primary Vendor.
Individuals listed in the key personnel section above may be included in this section.

24



4. Include a detailed timeline that corresponds with the provided guidance in the SOW (Section
III.A.1). If an alternative timeline is provided, justify the terms.

F. EVIDENCE OF EFFECTIVENESS

1. Demonstrate knowledge of “model fidelity” adherence and/or plan to acquire the necessary
training from the National Family Support Network and implement the standards over the
course of the contract terms, including staff training.

a. If the Vendor is not already a member of the National Family Support Network, this will
be required in the awarded contract.

2. Explain how the program services and activities will result in the desired outcomes at the
participant and community level. This should draw on relevant research and theory, illustrating
the validity of the program design and how the services align with local needs, contexts, and
circumstances.

3. Include a (graphical) logic model to explain the inputs, outputs, and short- and long-term
outcomes that result from implementing the program.

a. At minimum, logic models should clearly identify activities associated with protective
factors promotion and child abuse and neglect prevention as long-term outcomes.

G. PROPOSED PRICING

CSC Leon has allocated up to $4 million over three fiscal years (February 1, 2024, - September 30, 2026) 
to achieve the ITN goals. Provide CSC Leon with the most competitive price to accomplish the goals of 
the ITN. Include a detailed budget for performing the services outlined in Sections 3.C. Justify the 
proposed terms. Note, CSC Leon is prohibited from supplanting funds and does not provide funding for 
items already funded or budgeted by other sources. Therefore, the budget must clearly show that 
supplantation for existing services and/or programs will not occur.   

Financial terms will be considered in conjunction with the proposed SOW and negotiated prior to 
Contract(s) award. 

SECTION IV: EVALUATIONS & NEGOTIATIONS 

A. EVALUATION CRITERIA

The CSC Leon Evaluation Team members independently evaluate Responses, except those deemed non-
responsive, using the following high-level criteria.  

• Relevant Experience & Background
• Collaborative Partners
• Suggested Locations
• Program Design
• Evidence of Effectiveness
• Proposed Pricing
• Participation in Bidder’s Conference
Total points available: XXX

The scores of each Evaluation Team member will be aggregated and then reviewed by the Evaluation 
Team at a public meeting to reach consensus on a final ranking. Based on its ranking, the Evaluation 

25



Team will establish a competitive range of Responses reasonably susceptible of award. The Evaluation 
Team will then decide which one or more Vendors in that range will advance to the negotiation phase. 
The evaluation scoring does not carry forward into the negotiations. The Negotiation Team will not be 
bound by Evaluation Team scoring during the negotiation phase but may use it as a reference tool. 

B. NEGOTIATION OVERVIEW

CSC Leon reserves the right to negotiate different terms, additional terms, and related price adjustments 
if the Negotiation Team determines that such changes would provide the best value to CSC Leon. 
Additional operational requirements may be defined and clarifications required.  

The format and content of any pricing submissions, including but not limited to BAFOs, may be amended 
during negotiations at the discretion of the Negotiation Team. The Negotiation Team may require 
additional technical detail, demonstrations, and documentation during negotiations. The Negotiation 
Team may request proposed alternative terms or deliverables during negotiations, but it is under no 
obligation to accept proposed alternative terms or deliverables. 

Negotiation meetings will be conducted in Tallahassee, Florida. CSC Leon reserves the right to schedule 
negotiations via video or telephone conference (i.e., “virtually”). The Negotiation Team may distribute 
an agenda in advance of any negotiation session. Representatives for each Vendor should plan to be 
available, at least by telephone, without interruptions, for the entirety of the Vendor’s scheduled 
negotiation meeting(s). 

Negotiations will continue as determined by the Negotiation Team, until acceptable terms and 
conditions are agreed upon through a BAFO, if applicable, or it is determined that an acceptable 
agreement cannot be reached. CSC Leon reserves the right to conclude negotiations at any time and 
proceed to contract award. 

C. REVISED RESPONSES AND BEST AND FINAL OFFERS

During the negotiation phase, the Negotiation Team may request clarifications and revisions to 
Responses (including BAFOs) and identify information to be submitted to CSC Leon until it is satisfied 
that it has achieved the best value. Failure to provide information requested by the Negotiation Team 
during the negotiation phase may result in termination of negotiations with the Vendor. 

CSC Leon reserves the right to require any Vendor from which it requests a BAFO to sign the final 
Contract in its submitted BAFO. Once a Contract is awarded, no modifications will be made to the BAFO 
or any documents that form the final Contract.  

D. OTHER CSC LEON RIGHTS DURING NEGOTIATIONS

The Negotiation Team has sole discretion in deciding whether and when to take any of the following 
actions and to decide the scope and manner of such actions. The Negotiation Team reserves the right at 
any time during the negotiation phase to: 

1. Schedule additional negotiation sessions with any or all Vendors.
2. Require any or all Vendors to provide additional, revised, or final written Responses addressing

specific topics, including, but not limited to, modifications to the solicitation specifications,
terms and conditions, or business references.

26



3. Require any or all Vendors to provide revised Responses and written BAFOs.
4. Require any or all Vendors to address services, prices, or conditions offered by any other

Vendor.
5. Pursue a Contract with one or more Vendors for the Contract services, including any addenda

thereto and any request for additional, revised, or final written Responses or request for Best
and Final Offers.

6. Finalize Contract terms and conditions with any Vendor at any time.
7. End negotiations with any or all Vendors at any time, regardless of the status of or

schedule of negotiations, and to continue with other Vendors, or not continue with
any Vendors.

8. Conclude negotiations at any time and proceed to Contract award.
9. Re-open negotiations with any Vendor, except those deemed non-responsive.
10. Negotiate concurrently or sequentially with competing Vendors).
11. Take any additional, administrative steps deemed necessary in determining the award,

including conducting demonstrations, additional fact-finding, evaluation, or negotiation
where necessary and consistent with the terms of this solicitation.

12. Request the assistance of and use subject matter experts for any portion of the
procurement or throughout the procurement.

13. Review and rely on any information contained in the Responses.
14. Request pricing options different from the initial pricing offered by the Vendor.
15. Contact Vendor’s customers or other entities with information relevant to the Vendor’s

responsibility, experience, or ability.
16. Request value-added services from Vendors.

E. NEGOTIATION MEETINGS NOT OPEN TO PUBLIC

In accordance with section 286.0113, Florida Statutes, negotiations between CSC Leon and Vendors are 
exempt from Chapter 286, Florida Statutes, and s. 24(b), Art. I of the State Constitution. Also, any 
portion of a team meeting at which negotiation strategies are discussed are exempt from section 
286.011, Florida Statutes. 

CSC Leon will record all meetings of the negotiation team and all negotiation meetings between the 
Negotiation Team and Vendors, as required by law, and such recordings will eventually become public 
record pursuant to Chapter 286, Florida Statutes. During negotiations, Vendors must inform the 
Negotiation Team if any portion of the meetings should be considered confidential, proprietary, trade 
secret, or otherwise not subject to disclosure pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, the Florida 
Constitution, or other authority, so that the Negotiation Team can make appropriate arrangements for 
the segregation of the recording. 

If the Vendor fails to inform the Negotiation Team that any portion of the negotiation meetings should 
be considered confidential, proprietary, trade secret or otherwise not subject to disclosure, the 
Negotiation Team is authorized to produce the audio recording in answer to a public records request for 
these records. 

E. AWARD RECOMMENDATION

The Negotiation Team will formulate by consensus a recommendation of Contract(s) award that will 
provide the best value to CSC Leon based on the following selection criteria: 

27



1. The Vendor’s demonstration of its prior relevant experience and the overall professional
experience of the Vendor at providing the proposed services.

2. The Vendor’s ability and approach to meeting the ITN goals.
3. The Vendor’s ability and approach to providing the proposed services, including the

collaborative partnerships proposed.
4. The Vendor’s pricing.

“Best value” means the expected outcome of the Contract that, in the Negotiation Team’s estimation, 
provides the greatest overall benefit in response to the ITN requirements. 

The Negotiation Team will reduce its recommendation to writing, including a description of the basis of 
its recommendation, and convey that written recommendation to the Purchasing Official. The written 
recommendation will be a public record available for inspection (particular details may be redacted as 
authorized by Florida law). 

SECTION V: AWARD PROCESS 

The following outlines the award and contracting process governing this ITN. 

1. The Purchasing Official will convey the Negotiation Team’s written recommendation to the
Executive Director, for purposes of planning the meeting at which the CSC Leon Governing
Council will consider the recommendation.

2. The Purchasing Official will advise in writing (including email) every Vendor of the Negotiation
Team’s recommendation of award. This notice will include the date, time, and place of the
meeting at which the CSC Leon Governing Council will consider the recommendation, which will
be at least seven days after the date of the notice. The notice will also describe briefly CSC
Leon’s protest process.

3. Any protest of a recommended award must be made within seven days after the Purchasing
Official communicates notice of the recommended award, and before the CSC Leon Governing
Council votes on the recommendation. Failure to provide written notice of protest by certified
letter received by CSC Leon within seven days after the Purchasing Official communicates notice
of the recommended award will result in Vendor waiving its right to protest.

4. No recommendation of award is binding on CSC Leon. Only the CSC Leon Governing Council may
approve award of the Contract(s).

5. If the CSC Leon Governing Council votes to award the contract to a vendor other than the one
recommended by the Negotiation Team, within three business days after the Council meeting,
the Purchasing Official will advise in writing (including email) every Vendor of the Governing
Council’s decision. No notice will be given if the Governing Council adopts the Negotiation
Team’s recommendation of award. If notice is given, it will describe briefly the CSC Leon protest
process.

6. Any protest of a final award decision must be made within seven days after the Purchasing
Official communicates notice of the award decision. There is no right of protest if the Governing
Council adopts the recommendation of award.

28



7. After Governing Council approval of Contract(s) award and the expiration of any protest period,
CSC Leon will execute the written Contract through its Council chairperson or authorized
designee.

29



 The selection of the Vendor will not result in any current or potential conflict of interest with
CSC Leon. Alternately, should any potential or existing conflict be known by the Vendor, specify
the party with which the conflict exists or might arise, the nature of the conflict, and whether
the Vendor would step aside or resign from that engagement creating the conflict, including
each of the items below.

 Whether any officer, director, employee, or agent is also a current or former employee
of CSC Leon, or any of the members of the Council, and if there are any factors, financial
or otherwise, known to them which may give rise to a conflict of interest between you
and CSC Leon and its employees, or have the effect of impacting your ability to meet
your responsibilities, duties, and obligations to CSC Leon, as set forth in this ITN, and
whether the Vendor would step aside or resign from that engagement creating the
conflict. Disclose the name of any CSC Leon member or staff who owns, directly or
indirectly, an interest of five percent (5%) or more of your company or any of its
branches or affiliates.

 Any arrangement with any individual or entity with respect to the sharing of any
compensation, fees, or profit received from or in relation to acting as financial advisor
for CSC Leon. If applicable, provide a copy of any contract relating to the arrangement
and describe in detail the nature of the arrangement and the method of computing
compensation.

 Any person or firm retained for the purpose of seeking to be selected pursuant to this
ITN will the Vendor pay or be obligated to pay any firm or an individual who is not a full-
time employee of the Vendor if the Vendor is awarded a Contract under this ITN. If so,
identify the individual or firm, provide specific information relating to compensation
paid or to be paid, and provide a copy of any written contract relating to such
arrangement.

 The Response is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any other
person or entity submitting a response for the same services, and the response is in all respects
fair and without collusion or fraud.  The Response is not made in connection with any
competing Vendor submitting a separate response to the ITN and is in all respects fair and
without collusion or fraud. The Vendor did not directly or indirectly induce any party to submit
a false or sham Response or to refrain from responding. The Vendor did not participate in the
ITN development process, had no knowledge of the specific contents of the ITN prior to its
issuance, and did not involve any employee of CSC Leon directly or indirectly in the Response
preparation.

 The Response is that of the Vendor and has not been copied or obtained from any other
person or entity responding to any other competitive solicitation whether in Florida or
elsewhere either in the past or present.

30

FORM A – DISCLOSURES AND AFFIRMATION STATEMENT



 The Vendor has not been convicted of or entered a plea of nolo contendere to fraud within a
period of two years of such conviction.

 The Vendor and the agents, officers, principals, and professional employees thereof have not
and will not participate in any communication prohibited in this ITN.

I hereby certify that all information provided in this Response is true and correct, that I am 
authorized to sign this Response for the Vendor, and that the Vendor is in compliance with all 
requirements of the ITN.  

_________________________________________________ 
Authorized Signature (Manual) 

_________________________________________________ 
Name and Title (Typed) 

_________________________________________________ 
Date (Typed) 

_________________________________________________ 
Vendor (Typed) 

Form A Page 2 31



EXHIBIT 1 
FAMILY RESOURCE CENTERS 

STATEMENT OF WORK 

I. OVERVIEW

CSC Leon intends to iden�fy a single en�ty to serve as the Managing Agency to establish and operate a 
minimum of two (2) Family Resource Centers (FRCs) in Leon County during this ini�al contract, with the 
possibility of a third FRC upon demonstra�on of success. Addi�onal FRCs will be based on need in 
subsequent renewals. Each FRC will offer services to include, but not be limited to, resource and referral 
to primary preven�on and early interven�on services, and, when appropriate, targeted case 
management or naviga�on services to children and families. While the primary focus of the FRCs is 
families with young children, FRCs may serve any Leon County resident. Centers will be located in 
targeted zip codes and neighborhoods, and conveniently located near public transporta�on, as available. 

II. BACKGROUND/RATIONALE

The CSC Leon Needs Assessment (2022) iden�fied the need for improved access to services, despite 
there being more than 1,000 providers servicing children, youth, and families in Leon County. Due to 
access barriers, namely transporta�on, the true poten�al of many of these providers is not realized. 
Further, these barriers perpetuate inequi�es in the community and limit the affected community 
members from achieving their true poten�al. To enhance access to services and promote equity 
throughout Leon County, CSC Leon seeks to establish neighborhood hubs, or “FRCs,” as a solu�on to 
collocate services directly in neighborhoods to serve as one-stop shops for children and family services. 

To learn more about the specific areas targeted for this investment, see Exhibits 2-4 in this ITN. 

FRCs have gained na�onal popularity as a promising prac�ce to address and successfully divert the 
consequences of poverty. In summary, FRCs are place-based resource hubs where families can access 
formal and informal supports to promote their health and well-being. Services may include parent skills 
workshops, job training, substance abuse preven�on, mental health services, housing support, crisis 
interven�on services, literacy programs, referral services, and concrete supports such as food or clothing 
banks. (See Sec�on III.B for what is required for this ITN.) 

FRCs are dis�nct in that they are uniquely community-focused, are driven by family needs, and offer a 
mul�tude of programs and resources. They operate using a set of na�onally recognized standards that 
focus on collabora�ng with families to solve problems u�lizing a strengths-based approach instead of a 
risk-factor focus. Programming o�en focuses on a par�cular age group, such as parents of children ages 
birth to eight (8) years old. 

Evolving research and evalua�on indicate that family resource centers are promising strategies for 
addressing such issues as:  

32



• Child abuse and neglect
• Substance abuse
• Family violence
• Family instability
• Juvenile violence and crime

• Welfare to work/employment
• Community unity
• Family isolation
• Family and community health
• Educational outcomes

Not only can FRCs effec�vely address many societal issues related to poverty, but also, they can result in 
significant long-term taxpayer savings. Case studies show that for every $1 invested, up to $3.65 is saved 
for the child welfare system in Orange County, CA, and every $1 invested in an FRC in Teller County, CO, 
resulted in $2.92 of savings. A 2014 analysis found that the Alabama Network of FRCs provided a return 
on investment of $4.93 per dollar spent to the State of Alabama (Omni, 2021).   

To be most effec�ve, FRCs incorporate these nine “Best Prac�ce” principles for Family Support: 

1. Staff and families work together in relationships based on equality and respect.
2. Staff enhances families’ capacity to support the growth and development of all family members

– adults, youth, and children.
3. Families are resources to their own members, to other families, to programs, and to

communities.
4. Programs affirm and strengthen families’ cultural, racial, and linguistic identities and enhance

their ability to function in a multicultural society.
5. Programs are embedded in their communities and contribute to the community-building

process.
6. Programs advocate with families for services and systems that are fair, responsive, and

accountable to the families served.
7. Practitioners work with families to mobilize formal and informal resources to support family

development.
8. Programs are flexible and continually responsive to emerging family and community issues.
9. Principles of family support are modeled in all program activities, including planning,

governance, and administration.

In addi�on, risk factors resul�ng from poverty can be counterbalanced by protec�ve factors. Research 
shows that the Protec�ve Factors Framework increases family stability, enhances child development, and 
reduces child abuse and neglect. As such, FRCs should ensure that core service provision focuses on 
helping families (1) develop and maintain stable and nurturing caregiver-child rela�onships; (2) learn 
effec�ve and appropriate paren�ng skills to support child development and improve child behavior; 
(3) enhance family communica�on and conflict resolu�on skills; and (4) provide caregivers with social
support and linkages to exis�ng community resources.

Further details on the Protec�ve Factors Framework are listed below. 

33



A. The protective factors framework provides a better understanding on how six (6) protective
factors may contribute to or explain positive outcomes for children, families, and communities,
as well as prevent child abuse and neglect. Protective factors are conditions or attributes of
individuals, families, communities, or the larger society, that reduce risk and promote healthy
development and well-being of children and families, today and in the future.

1. Parental Resilience: Parents who can cope with the stresses of everyday life, as well as
an occasional crisis, have resilience; they have the flexibility and inner strength
necessary to bounce back when things are not going well.

2. Social Connections: Research has shown that parents who are isolated and have few
social connections are at higher risk for maltreating their children. Parents and
caregivers with a social network of emotionally supportive friends, family, and neighbors
often find that it is easier to care for their children and themselves compared with those
who do not have such a network.

3. Knowledge of Parenting and Child and Youth Development: There is extensive research
linking healthy child development to effective parenting. Children thrive when parents
provide not only affection but also respectful communication and listening, consistent
rules and expectations, and safe opportunities that promote independence.

4. Concrete Support for Parents: Partnering with parents to identify and access resources
in the community may help prevent the stress that sometimes precipitates child
maltreatment. Providing concrete supports may also help prevent the unintended
neglect that sometimes occurs when parents are unable to provide for their children.

5. Nurturing and Attachment/Children’s Social and Emotional Development: Research
shows that babies who receive affection and nurturing from their parents have the best
chance of healthy development. A child's relationship with a consistent, caring adult in
the early years is associated later in life with better academic grades, healthier
behaviors, more positive peer interactions, and an increased ability to cope with stress.

6. Social and Emotional Competence of Children: When parents model how to express
and communicate emotions effectively, self-regulate, and make friends, they support
healthy social and emotional development in children. A child's social and emotional
competence is crucial to sound relationships with family, adults, and peers. Conversely,
delayed social-emotional development may obstruct the development of healthy
relationships. Early identification of such delays and early assistance for children and
parents can provide support for family relationships and sustain positive and
appropriate development.

34



III. PROGRAM DESIGN

The selected proposal to be awarded funding from CSC Leon as the single Agency for Family Resource 
Center (FRC) Management is required to include the following components in its applica�on.  

A. Timeline: include a proposed timeline for identifying and securing locations, staff, partnerships,
and resources, as well as targeted “open for service” dates for each location

1. CSC Leon expects, at minimum, that one location will be fully operational by no later
than October 2024 and the second location will be fully operational by the end of June
2025; upon successful expansion feasibility review, a third and final location should be
operational by April 2026. There is opportunity for subsequent renewals to include
funding for additional sites upon demonstration of successful implementation,
outcomes and needs.

B. Programming: detail the core services you will provide in each of the following areas. Your
description should clearly identify the specific types of programming for each item below and
who will provide the service (i.e., your entity or a community partner). Also, for each service
provided by a community partner, you must detail how the service will be funded (i.e., provided
in-kind or included in the budget request you submit with this ITN) and you must include a letter
of support from the partner as exhibits to this section; the letter of support must include the
services to be provided by the partner and their expertise/experience.

1. Parent Education (e.g., child development classes, support groups, peer-to-peer)
2. Child Development Activities (e.g., early childhood development activities,

nontraditional childcare, play groups)
3. Youth Development Activities (e.g., afterschool tutoring, mentoring)
4. Drop-in Availability (e.g., a comfortable place for confidential conversations, neighbor-

to-neighbor meetings)
5. Peer-to-Peer Supports (e.g., support groups, adult mentoring)
6. Life Skills Advocacy (e.g., anger management classes, communication skills, budgeting,

cooking classes, etc.)
*Note, the en�ty selected for funding will be required to submit plans for expansion as part
of one of its contract deliverables (if the approved, the expansion will be funded
subsequently in accordance with Sec�on III.A.1 in this ITN).

C. Resource & Referral Services: detail the process the FRC will use to assess family needs and
make appropriate referrals to other community resources and services (i.e., targeted case
management and/or navigation services, as appropriate).

1. Identify the tool you propose to use for family assessment; include details on
administration training requirements, supervision, follow-up, etc.

2. Identify the preferred community resource for “warm” referral to the following services:
i. Family instability

ii. Substance misuse
iii. Juvenile truancy, violence, crime

35



iv. Welfare to work/employment
v. Concrete supports (cash assistance, food pantry, clothing bank, etc.)

vi. Youth and family health
3. Include additional community resources as appropriate

D. Ancillary Services: identify any ancillary services that will be available at the FRCs at inception
and/or throughout the duration of the contract (e.g., computer room, printing, notary, food
pantry, etc.); provide justification for these services (required if your budget includes funding to
support ancillary service implementation).

E. Advisory Council: describe plan for the establishment, support, and maintenance of a
parent/family advisory council at each individual FRC; plans should reflect use of nationally
recognized tools and resources (e.g., parent and family leadership self-assessments), and
include description of recruitment activities, leadership development, member engagement and
meeting facilitation.

F. Participation Fees: services available at FRCs should be offered to families free-of-charge; if a
service needs to be subsidized by a family, it should be at a very low cost. If you propose that
specific services will require a family to pay, you must include in your response (1) a detailed
explanation of what the service is, (2) the fee that will be charged for the service and what that
fee covers, and (3) justification for why the fee must be charged.

G. Best Practices: demonstrate thorough understanding of the aforementioned best practice
principles for Family Support and describe how they will be assured.

H. Service Numbers: identify how many unduplicated families (parents, youth, children) will be
served by the FRC per year as (1) a “drop in,” or (2) a “member”.

1. “Drop in” and “member” are terms to differentiate between the levels and/or types of
services and corresponding data collection requirements for each family accessing an
FRC.  A “drop in” is an individual who uses FRC services on an as-needed basis without
completing a formal intake process (e.g., attendees at an event). “Members” are
individuals who use FRC services on a regular basis and have completed a formal intake
process (e.g., families receiving referrals and/or navigation services). Vendors may
propose their own terms for these types of recipients.

2. Minimum Recruitment Targets:
i. “Drop In” Status: 600 Parents/Caregivers including Teen Parents (to grow to

1,200 members per center by year three)
ii. “Member” Status: 10 new member families per month

I. Program Recruitment: provide a detailed plan for the recruitment and retention of FRC
“members”; indicate prospective referral sources, follow-up plans, enrollment processes, etc.

1. Budget requests can include funding for marketing expenses and materials, as well as
for recruitment incentives and program enhancements to boost participation and
engagement.

36



J. Data Collection: demonstrate capacity to adhere to each of the data collection requirements
and corresponding performance indicators as listed below. If it is your position that certain data
cannot be captured, you must include suggested alternatives, if applicable.

1. Budget requests can include funding for data collection and entry.
2. Proposals should anticipate the need for translation and interpreter services. CSC Leon

will provide data collection forms in English and Spanish and, should the need arise,
incur translation costs for other languages on these materials.

K. Staffing Plan: provide a detailed staffing plan with job descriptions and qualifications to include
a minimum of a Director (to oversee all centers), Center Managers, and at least one Service
Coordinator for each location (bilingual preferred); include training and background screening
expectations.

1. All employees of a FRC will be required to successfully pass (or clear) a Level 2
background screen.

IV. DATA COLLECTION REQUIREMENTS

The en�ty awarded the Family Resource Center Management contract is required to collect and report 
the following from all FRCs. All data must be input into SAMIS (tools and training will be provided): 

A. Basic demographic details for all children, youth and family “members” served.
1. Programs will be required to gather demographic data including but not limited to age,

grade, race, gender, zip code, and school to help CSC Leon better understand the types
of children, youth and families accessing services.

B. Participation Data
1. Number of children/youth/parents “members” at the FRC.
2. Number of children/youth/parents “drop ins” at the FRC.
3. Number, frequency, and types of activities and/or referrals completed/provided, by

member type (member vs. drop in).

C. FRC Activity Data
1. Number of activities/events/programs conducted at the FRC.
2. Number and types of community partnerships established, and with whom.
3. Other relevant information, based on logic model.

D. Family Functioning Assessments
1. FRCs will be required to administer periodic Family Functioning assessments with FRC

family “members” to measure gains in protective factors and family functioning
resulting from their “membership” experience. The assessment tools must be
administered at or near enrollment and then at six months and 18 months. The tools are
validated survey instruments selected and provided by CSC Leon. All assessment tools
and training will be provided.

37



E. “Member” Satisfaction Survey (using CSC Leon-provided questionnaire)
1. To contribute to CSC Leon’s composite picture of program quality, FRCs will be required

to administer a short satisfaction survey periodically based on FRC utilization by
individual members to identify both program strengths and areas for improvement.
Results will be accessible by the program to help improve quality and better meet the
needs of families in the future.

F. Community Partnership Satisfaction Survey (using CSC Leon-provided questionnaire)
1. To contribute to CSC Leon’s composite picture of program quality, FRCs will be required

to administer a short satisfaction survey periodically based on FRC utilization by
partners to identify both program strengths and areas for improvement. Results will be
accessible by the program to help improve quality and better meet the needs of families
in the future.

V. PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The en�ty awarded the Family Resource Center Management contract is required to collect data to meet 
the following process measures and outcomes during its ini�al contract. The en�ty will also be required 
to par�cipate in an external evalua�on measuring implementa�on success and progress towards 
intended outcomes as iden�fied in the proposal logic model. 

Process Measures 

A. FRC will meet or exceed its membership recruitment and retention goals each year (defined by a
program in its program design, Item I).

B. 95% of family “members” will complete a Family Functioning Pre-Service Assessment within the
first two weeks of enrollment.

C. 80% of family “members” who completed a Family Functioning Pre-Service Assessment will
complete a second assessment six months later.

D. 65% of family “members” who completed a Family Functioning six-month Assessment will
complete a third assessment 18 months later.

Program Outcomes 

E. 85% of family “members” who complete the Family Functioning Assessments at enrollment and
six months will show gains in at least one subscale of the instrument.

38



F. 85% of family “members” who complete the Family Functioning Assessments at enrollment and
at 18 months will show gains in at least two subscales of the instrument.

G. 95% of family “members” who complete at least two administrations of the Family Functioning
Assessment will have no findings of verified child maltreatment within 12 months after
completion of the second assessment.

H. 90% of “members” indicate they are satisfied or highly satisfied with their FRC membership.

I. 90% of community partners indicate they are satisfied or highly satisfied with their FRC partnership.

VI. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

The entity awarded the Family Resource Center Management contract will be required to provide the 
following regular reports using a standardized template in SAMIS. 

A. An “Implementation Status Report” is required on April 7, 2024, and then quarterly thereafter on
the 7th of July and October 2024; January, April, and July 2025. The report shall include, at
minimum, a brief narrative on the status of location acquisition, staffing, community
partnerships, services and membership. Additional elements may be required.

B. A “Data and Budget Report” is required on April 7, 2024, and then quarterly thereafter on the
7th of the July and October 2024; January, April, July and October 2025; and January 2026. The
report shall include, at minimum, a brief narrative, status report on data collection efforts, and
overview of expenditures from the reporting period. Additional elements may be required.

C. A “Monthly Membership and Activities Report” is due on the 7th of every month starting in
March 2024. The report will include demographic data of children, youth and families served,
number of meetings, number of events, types of supports provided, etc.

D. An “Expansion Feasibility Study” will be completed by no later than October 1, 2025. This
assessment will include a program narrative, outcome findings to date, compliance with data
collection and reporting requirements, continued neighborhood needs, and availability of funds
for the implementation of a third FRC location.

E. A “Renewal Eligibility Assessment” must be completed by no later than April 10, 2026. This
assessment will include an updated program narrative, preliminary outcome findings, a SWOT
analysis of the program, expansion plan, compliance with enhanced data collection and
reporting requirements based on external evaluation findings, and budget request for continued
funding beyond September 30, 2026.

F. A “Final Report” is required by no later than October 15, 2026. The report shall include, at
minimum, a complete program narrative, final distribution records, and a detailed expenditure

39



report. Unspent funds are required to be returned to CSC Leon by no later than December 31, 
2026, to avoid fines or exclusion from future funding opportunities. Funded entities may return 
the funds via mail postmarked by December 31, or place a sealed envelope clearly labeled with 
the entity’s name and contact person in the drop box at CSC Leon’s office located at 2002 Old St. 
Augustine Road, Suite A-50, Tallahassee, FL 32301.  

40



Census Tract Family Poverty % HH SNAP Benefits 
% 

Low Birth Weight 
Count Gun Death Count 

2 5.5 10.4 3 2 
3.01 5.8 4.2 5 1 
3.02 4.6 6.8 13 1 
3.03 24.2 26 26 2 

4 22.3 14 5 0 
5.01 0 0 1 0 
5.02 0 2 0 0 

6 20.6 28.3 17 3 
7 19.1 12.9 8 2 
8 3.7 1 10 2 

9.03 4 13.3 22 0 
9.04 0 6.9 20 0 
9.05 10 8 21 0 
9.06 6.8 5.3 13 5 
9.07 0.3 2.9 18 5 

10.01 43.4 49.2 46 6 
10.02 31.3 36.4 31 7 
11.01 32.2 43.1 35 1 
11.02 10.8 40.4 21 1 

12 18.9 46.3 10 2 
13 0 0 0 0 

14.01 15.3 24 18 3 
14.02 59 23.4 37 6 

15 12 19.1 35 3 
16.01 26.6 16.5 37 3 
16.02 2 0.7 10 3 
17.01 0 1.4 6 1 
17.02 0 1.3 14 3 
18.01 23.2 37.1 49 4 
18.03 0 13.6 4 1 
18.04 16.9 24.1 61 3 
19.01 40.8 24.4 32 3 
19.02 41.6 22.7 51 9 
20.03 15.2 30 16 0 
20.05 47.4 5.3 1 1 
20.06 28.9 4 18 1 
20.07 34.3 7.1 29 3 
20.08 0 4.8 13 3 
21.01 0 1.6 27 5 
21.03 55.5 11.1 20 3 
21.05 16.5 27.2 32 2 
21.06 40.9 6.5 14 1 
22.01 19.6 16.4 83 2 
22.05 20.7 19 51 3 
22.06 8.7 6.8 13 1 
22.07 10.1 21.2 9 2 
22.08 8.7 15.9 24 3 

41

Exhibit 2: Neighborhood Identification for Priority Investment by Select Measures (All 
data points sourced from the American Data Survey, 2021 5-year estimates)



Census Tract Family Poverty % HH SNAP Benefits 
% 

Low Birth Weight 
Count Gun Death Count 

23.02 9.1 6.4 17 2 
23.03 7.7 9.1 39 6 
23.04 21 21.9 20 6 
24.03 2.4 5.2 15 0 
24.1 4.3 4.8 19 1 

24.11 1.7 1.9 2 1 
24.13 1.2 0 9 3 
24.14 5.7 3.1 11 3 
24.15 1.9 1.3 5 3 
24.16 0 1 5 1 
24.18 4.2 1.5 15 5 
24.19 3 2.9 9 1 
24.2 0 3.8 5 3 

24.21 8.1 2.4 15 2 
24.22 5.2 0 9 1 
24.23 4.4 1.4 15 2 
25.05 0.6 6.6 43 5 
25.07 0 3.2 9 2 
25.09 6.3 17.7 23 3 
25.11 11.6 1 5 0 
25.12 1.4 5.7 3 3 
25.13 0.9 0.4 15 3 
25.14 0 3.3 5 1 
25.15 3.5 0.6 32 1 
25.16 2.3 9.7 16 1 
25.17 1.7 0 8 1 
26.03 13.5 31.8 42 2 
26.04 12.9 18.2 8 3 
26.05 2.9 2.6 22 0 
26.06 4 7.6 7 2 
27.01 15.6 25.7 33 4 
27.02 8.6 10.6 22 8 

COLOR KEY FOR CHART ABOVE 

Light Green 1st Quartile Data 
Pale Yellow 2nd Quartile Data 
Orange 3rd Quartile Data 
Red 4th Quartile Data 
Dark Blue Census Tract With Greatest Need (at least three 4th quartile data points) 
Blue Census Tract With High Need (all data points are either 3rd or 4th Quartile) 
Light Blue Census Tract with Need (three data points are either 3rd or 4th Quartile) 

County Census Tract Map & Profiles directly from the U.S. Census Bureau: Access Leon 

42

https://data.census.gov/map?g=050XX00US12073$1400000&y=2021&d=ACS+5- 
Year+Estimates+Subject+Tables&tid=ACSST5Y2021.S1101&cid=S1101_C01_007E&layer=VT_2021_140_00_PY_D1& 
mode=thematic&loc=30.4741,-84.3513,z10.2104

https://data.census.gov/map?g=050XX00US12073$1400000&y=2021&d=ACS+5-Year+Estimates+Subject+Tables&tid=ACSST5Y2021.S1101&cid=S1101_C01_007E&layer=VT_2021_140_00_PY_D1&mode=thematic&loc=30.4741,-84.3513,z10.2104
https://data.census.gov/map?g=050XX00US12073$1400000&y=2021&d=ACS+5-Year+Estimates+Subject+Tables&tid=ACSST5Y2021.S1101&cid=S1101_C01_007E&layer=VT_2021_140_00_PY_D1&mode=thematic&loc=30.4741,-84.3513,z10.2104
https://data.census.gov/map?g=050XX00US12073$1400000&y=2021&d=ACS+5-Year+Estimates+Subject+Tables&tid=ACSST5Y2021.S1101&cid=S1101_C01_007E&layer=VT_2021_140_00_PY_D1&mode=thematic&loc=30.4741,-84.3513,z10.2104


TABLE 1: 

Zip Code Profile: Zip Codes, Census Tracts, 
and Title 1 Schools

Zip  
Code Census Tract Title 1 Schools

32301

12073000200

FRANK HARTSFIELD 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
JAMES RICKARDS HIGH 

SCHOOL

12073000301

12073000302

12073000303

12073000400

12073000500

12073000600

12073000903

12073000904

12073000905

12073001001

12073001002

12073001101

12073001102

12073001802

12073002509

32303

12073000200

AMOS P. GODBY HIGH 
SCHOOL

ASTORIA PARK ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL

RUEDIGER�ELEMENTARY�
SCHOOL

SPRINGWOOD�ELEMENTARY�
SCHOOL

TALLAHASSEE SCHOOL OF 
MATH & SCIENCES

12073000600

12073000700

12073000800

12073001402

12073001500

12073001601

12073001700

12073002101

12073002104

12073002201

12073002205

12073002206

12073002207

12073002208

*Non-residential zip codes (e.g., PO Box) were removed
**Highlighted census tracts represent the highest presence of families living in poverty (>35%)

43

Exhibit 3: Table 1 from 2022 Needs Assessment



Zip  
Code Census Tract Title 1 Schools

12073002302

12073002303

12073002304

32304

12073000500

GRIFFIN MIDDLE SCHOOL
JOHN G RILEY ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL
SUCCESS�ACADEMY�AT�
GHAZVINI LEARNING 

CENTER

12073000600

12073001300

12073001401

12073001402

12073001902

12073002003

12073002004

12073002005

12073002006

12073002103

12073002104

12073002201

12073002304

12073002701

12073002702

32305

12073001101

FAIRVIEW�MIDDLE�SCHOOL
OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL
WOODVILLE�SCHOOL

12073001102

12073001801

12073001802

12073001902

12073002603

12073002604

12073002701

32307 12073000400 N/A

32308

12073000200

GOVERNOR'S CHARTER 
SCHOOL

12073000901

12073001700

12073002403

12073002505

12073002511

12073002512
*Non-residential zip codes (e.g., PO Box) were removed
**Highlighted census tracts represent the highest presence of families living in poverty (>35%)

44

Exhibit 3: Table 1 from 2022 Needs Assessment



Zip  
Code Census Tract Title 1 Schools

32309

12073002408

N/A

12073002410

12073002413

12073002414

12073002415

12073002416

12073002508

32310

12073000400
BOND ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL
FORT BRADEN SCHOOL
PINEVIEW�ELEMENTARY�

SCHOOL
R. FRANK NIMS MIDDLE

SCHOOL
SABAL PALM ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

12073001101

12073001102

12073001200

12073001901

12073001902

12073002701

12073002702

32311

12073001802

APALACHEE ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL

12073002507

12073002509

12073002510

12073002604

12073002605

12073002606

32312

12073001601

SEALEY ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL

12073001602

12073001700

12073002302

12073002408

12073002410

12073002411

12073002412

12073002413

12073002416

12073002417
*Non-residential zip codes (e.g., PO Box) were removed
**Highlighted census tracts represent the highest presence of families living in poverty (>35%)

45

Exhibit 3: Table 1 from 2022 Needs Assessment



Zip  
Code Census Tract Title 1 Schools

32317

12073002505

CHAIRES ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL

12073002507

12073002508

12073002510

12073002512

12073002513

32399

12073000200

N/A12073000303

12073000500
*Non-residential zip codes (e.g., PO Box) were removed
**Highlighted census tracts represent the highest presence of families living in poverty (>35%)

46

Exhibit 3: Table 1 from 2022 Needs Assessment



Ta
bl

e 
20

:

Ne
igh

bo
rho

od
 Pr

ofi
le 

for
 Le

on
 Co

un
ty 

12
6 

  ,
 1

27
, 1

28
 

Le
on

 
Co

un
ty

 Z
ip

 
Co

de

H
ea

lth
y 

C
hi

ld
re

n,
 Y

ou
th

, &
 F

am
ily

 In
di

ca
to

rs
St

ab
le

 a
nd

 N
ur

tu
rin

g 
Fa

m
ili

es
 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
El

em
en

ta
ry

 S
ch

oo
ls

W
ith

in
 Z

ip
 C

od
e

Su
cc

es
s 

in
 S

ch
oo

l &
 L

ife
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
Sc

ho
ol

s

%
 o

f M
ot

he
rs

 
w

ith
 n

o 
Pr

en
at

al
 C

ar
e 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

R
at

e 
of

 In
fa

nt
 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

1,
00

0 
B

ir
th

s 
in

 
Le

on
 C

ou
nt

y 
fr

om
 2

01
6-

20
20

)

R
at

e 
of

 
M

at
er

na
l 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

B
ir

th
s 

in
 L

eo
n 

Co
un

ty
 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

%
 o

f F
am

ili
es

 
Li

vi
ng

 in
 

Po
ve

rt
y 

(a
t 

Le
ss

 T
ha

n 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 
Po

ve
rt

y 
Le

ve
l 

20
15

-2
01

9 
Es

tim
at

es
)

%
 o

f 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 

Fo
st

er
 C

ar
e 

(Y
ou

th
 u

nd
er

 
th

e 
A

ge
 o

f 
18

 in
 2

01
0)

%
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n 
 

Ki
nd

er
ga

rt
en

 
R

ea
dy

 
(s

co
rin

g13
3  

50
0 

or
 G

re
at

er
 

on
 S

TA
R

 
Ea

rly
 L

ite
ra

cy
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t)

%
 P

ro
fic

ie
nt

 
in

 3
rd

 g
ra

de
 

EL
A

 (i
n 

20
21

 
fo

r L
ev

el
 3

 a
nd

 
ab

ov
e)

32
30

1
4.

20
%

12
0

5.
67

%
1.

19
%

FR
A

N
K 

H
A

RT
SF

IE
LD

 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

 S
CH

O
O

L 
35

.6
0%

45
.0

0%

32
30

2
0.

00
%

0
0

N
/A

12
6�

Fl
or
id
a�
H
ea
lth

�C
ha

rt
s.
�(n

.d
.).
�L
eo

n�
Co

un
ty
.�R

et
ri
ev
ed

�Ju
ne

�8
,�2
02

2,
�fr
om

�h
tt
ps
://
w
w
w
.fl
he

al
th
ch
ar
ts
.g
ov
/C
ha

rt
sR
ep

or
ts
/r
dP

ag
e.
as
px
?r
dR

ep
or
t=
Ch

ar
ts
M
ap

s.
ch
ar
ts
M
ap

pe
r&
rd
Re

qu
es
tF
or
w
ar
di
ng

=F
or
m

12
7 

Fl
or

id
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f E
du

ca
tio

n.
 S

pr
in

g 
20

21
 F

lo
ri

da
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

: E
ng

lis
h 

La
ng

ua
ge

 A
rt

s 
G

ra
de

 3
 S

ch
oo

l R
es

ul
ts

. R
et

ri
ev

ed
 Ju

ne
 8

, 2
02

2.
 

12
8 

Fl
or

id
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f E
du

ca
tio

n.
 F

al
l 2

02
1 

Fl
or

id
a 

Ki
nd

er
ga

rt
en

 R
ea

di
ne

ss
 S

cr
ee

ne
r 

(F
LK

RS
) S

ch
oo

l R
es

ul
ts

. R
et

ri
ev

ed
 Ju

ne
 8

, 2
02

2.
 

47

Exhibit 4: Table 20 from 2022 Needs Assessment



Le
on

 
Co

un
ty

 Z
ip

 
Co

de

H
ea

lth
y 

C
hi

ld
re

n,
 Y

ou
th

, &
 F

am
ily

 In
di

ca
to

rs
St

ab
le

 a
nd

 N
ur

tu
rin

g 
Fa

m
ili

es
 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
El

em
en

ta
ry

 S
ch

oo
ls

W
ith

in
 Z

ip
 C

od
e

Su
cc

es
s 

in
 S

ch
oo

l &
 L

ife
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
Sc

ho
ol

s

%
 o

f M
ot

he
rs

 
w

ith
 n

o 
Pr

en
at

al
 C

ar
e 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

R
at

e 
of

 In
fa

nt
 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

1,
00

0 
B

ir
th

s 
in

 
Le

on
 C

ou
nt

y 
fr

om
 2

01
6-

20
20

)

R
at

e 
of

 
M

at
er

na
l 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

B
ir

th
s 

in
 L

eo
n 

Co
un

ty
 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

%
 o

f F
am

ili
es

 
Li

vi
ng

 in
 

Po
ve

rt
y 

(a
t 

Le
ss

 T
ha

n 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 
Po

ve
rt

y 
Le

ve
l 

20
15

-2
01

9 
Es

tim
at

es
)

%
 o

f 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 

Fo
st

er
 C

ar
e 

(Y
ou

th
 u

nd
er

 
th

e 
A

ge
 o

f 
18

 in
 2

01
0)

%
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n 
 

Ki
nd

er
ga

rt
en

 
R

ea
dy

 
(s

co
rin

g13
3  

50
0 

or
 G

re
at

er
 

on
 S

TA
R

 
Ea

rly
 L

ite
ra

cy
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t)

%
 P

ro
fic

ie
nt

 
in

 3
rd

 g
ra

de
 

EL
A

 (i
n 

20
21

 
fo

r L
ev

el
 3

 a
nd

 
ab

ov
e)

32
30

3
4.

70
%

6
0

3.
35

%
3.

11
%

TA
LL

A
H

A
SS

EE
 S

CH
O

O
L 

O
F 

M
A

TH
 &

 S
CI

EN
CE

S
36

.4
0%

42
.0

0%

SP
RI

N
G

W
O

O
D

 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

 S
CH

O
O

L
30

.0
0%

21
.0

0%

RU
ED

IG
ER

 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

 S
CH

O
O

L
31

.0
0%

31
.0

0%

A
ST

O
RI

A
 P

A
RK

 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

 S
CH

O
O

L
29

.0
0%

28
.0

0%

CA
N

O
PY

 O
AK

S 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

 S
CH

O
O

L
59

.3
0%

62
.0

0%

TH
E 

SC
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
AR

TS
 &

 
SC

IE
N

CE
S 

CE
N

TR
E

67
.2

0%
67

.0
0%

48

Exhibit 4: Table 20 from 2022 Needs Assessment



Le
on

 
Co

un
ty

 Z
ip

 
Co

de

H
ea

lth
y 

C
hi

ld
re

n,
 Y

ou
th

, &
 F

am
ily

 In
di

ca
to

rs
St

ab
le

 a
nd

 N
ur

tu
rin

g 
Fa

m
ili

es
 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
El

em
en

ta
ry

 S
ch

oo
ls

W
ith

in
 Z

ip
 C

od
e

Su
cc

es
s 

in
 S

ch
oo

l &
 L

ife
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
Sc

ho
ol

s

%
 o

f M
ot

he
rs

 
w

ith
 n

o 
Pr

en
at

al
 C

ar
e 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

R
at

e 
of

 In
fa

nt
 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

1,
00

0 
B

ir
th

s 
in

 
Le

on
 C

ou
nt

y 
fr

om
 2

01
6-

20
20

)

R
at

e 
of

 
M

at
er

na
l 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

B
ir

th
s 

in
 L

eo
n 

Co
un

ty
 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

%
 o

f F
am

ili
es

 
Li

vi
ng

 in
 

Po
ve

rt
y 

(a
t 

Le
ss

 T
ha

n 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 
Po

ve
rt

y 
Le

ve
l 

20
15

-2
01

9 
Es

tim
at

es
)

%
 o

f 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 

Fo
st

er
 C

ar
e 

(Y
ou

th
 u

nd
er

 
th

e 
A

ge
 o

f 
18

 in
 2

01
0)

%
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n 
 

Ki
nd

er
ga

rt
en

 
R

ea
dy

 
(s

co
rin

g13
3  

50
0 

or
 G

re
at

er
 

on
 S

TA
R

 
Ea

rly
 L

ite
ra

cy
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t)

%
 P

ro
fic

ie
nt

 
in

 3
rd

 g
ra

de
 

EL
A

 (i
n 

20
21

 
fo

r L
ev

el
 3

 a
nd

 
ab

ov
e)

32
30

4
6.

40
%

8.
6

57
.4

11
.9

3%
0.

17
%

JO
H

N
 G

 R
IL

EY
 

EL
EM

EN
TA

RY
 S

CH
O

O
L

16
.2

0%
19

.0
0%

32
30

5
4.

50
%

9.
5

78
.9

9.
22

%
3.

49
%

O
A

K 
RI

D
G

E 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

 
SC

H
O

O
L

32
.7

0%
32

.0
0%

W
O

O
D

VI
LL

E 
SC

H
O

O
L

33
.3

0%
37

.0
0%

32
30

6
0.

00
%

0
0

N
O

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
RY

 S
CH

O
O

L 
IN

 Z
IP

 C
O

D
E

32
30

7
0.

00
%

0
0

N
O

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
RY

 S
CH

O
O

L 
IN

 Z
IP

 C
O

D
E

49

Exhibit 4: Table 20 from 2022 Needs Assessment



Le
on

 
Co

un
ty

 Z
ip

 
Co

de

H
ea

lth
y 

C
hi

ld
re

n,
 Y

ou
th

, &
 F

am
ily

 In
di

ca
to

rs
St

ab
le

 a
nd

 N
ur

tu
rin

g 
Fa

m
ili

es
 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
El

em
en

ta
ry

 S
ch

oo
ls

W
ith

in
 Z

ip
 C

od
e

Su
cc

es
s 

in
 S

ch
oo

l &
 L

ife
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
Sc

ho
ol

s

%
 o

f M
ot

he
rs

 
w

ith
 n

o 
Pr

en
at

al
 C

ar
e 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

R
at

e 
of

 In
fa

nt
 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

1,
00

0 
B

ir
th

s 
in

 
Le

on
 C

ou
nt

y 
fr

om
 2

01
6-

20
20

)

R
at

e 
of

 
M

at
er

na
l 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

B
ir

th
s 

in
 L

eo
n 

Co
un

ty
 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

%
 o

f F
am

ili
es

 
Li

vi
ng

 in
 

Po
ve

rt
y 

(a
t 

Le
ss

 T
ha

n 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 
Po

ve
rt

y 
Le

ve
l 

20
15

-2
01

9 
Es

tim
at

es
)

%
 o

f 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 

Fo
st

er
 C

ar
e 

(Y
ou

th
 u

nd
er

 
th

e 
A

ge
 o

f 
18

 in
 2

01
0)

%
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n 
 

Ki
nd

er
ga

rt
en

 
R

ea
dy

 
(s

co
rin

g13
3  

50
0 

or
 G

re
at

er
 

on
 S

TA
R

 
Ea

rly
 L

ite
ra

cy
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t)

%
 P

ro
fic

ie
nt

 
in

 3
rd

 g
ra

de
 

EL
A

 (i
n 

20
21

 
fo

r L
ev

el
 3

 a
nd

 
ab

ov
e)

32
30

8
2.

90
%

6.
1

87
.3

1.
10

%
2.

59
%

W
�T
�M

O
O
RE

�
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

 
SC

H
O

O
L

52
.1

0%
56

.0
0%

TH
E 

SC
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
AR

TS
 A

N
D

 S
CI

EN
CE

S 
O

N
 T

H
O

M
AS

VI
LL

E
61

.1
0%

72
.0

0%

KA
TE
�S
U
LL
IV
AN

�
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

 
SC

H
O

O
L

52
.8

0%
73

.0
0%

32
30

9
3.

70
%

7.
6

0
2.

13
%

0.
84

%
D

ES
O

TO
 T

RA
IL

 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

 
SC

H
O

O
L

74
.2

0%
21

.0
0%

RO
BE

RT
S 

EL
EM

EN
TA

RY
 

SC
H

O
O

L
67

.9
0%

77
.0

0%

50

Exhibit 4: Table 20 from 2022 Needs Assessment



Le
on

 
Co

un
ty

 Z
ip

 
Co

de

H
ea

lth
y 

C
hi

ld
re

n,
 Y

ou
th

, &
 F

am
ily

 In
di

ca
to

rs
St

ab
le

 a
nd

 N
ur

tu
rin

g 
Fa

m
ili

es
 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
El

em
en

ta
ry

 S
ch

oo
ls

W
ith

in
 Z

ip
 C

od
e

Su
cc

es
s 

in
 S

ch
oo

l &
 L

ife
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
Sc

ho
ol

s

%
 o

f M
ot

he
rs

 
w

ith
 n

o 
Pr

en
at

al
 C

ar
e 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

R
at

e 
of

 In
fa

nt
 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

1,
00

0 
B

ir
th

s 
in

 
Le

on
 C

ou
nt

y 
fr

om
 2

01
6-

20
20

)

R
at

e 
of

 
M

at
er

na
l 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

B
ir

th
s 

in
 L

eo
n 

Co
un

ty
 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

%
 o

f F
am

ili
es

 
Li

vi
ng

 in
 

Po
ve

rt
y 

(a
t 

Le
ss

 T
ha

n 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 
Po

ve
rt

y 
Le

ve
l 

20
15

-2
01

9 
Es

tim
at

es
)

%
 o

f 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 

Fo
st

er
 C

ar
e 

(Y
ou

th
 u

nd
er

 
th

e 
A

ge
 o

f 
18

 in
 2

01
0)

%
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n 
 

Ki
nd

er
ga

rt
en

 
R

ea
dy

 
(s

co
rin

g13
3  

50
0 

or
 G

re
at

er
 

on
 S

TA
R

 
Ea

rly
 L

ite
ra

cy
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t)

%
 P

ro
fic

ie
nt

 
in

 3
rd

 g
ra

de
 

EL
A

 (i
n 

20
21

 
fo

r L
ev

el
 3

 a
nd

 
ab

ov
e)

32
31

0
5.

50
%

11
.2

17
2.

7
11

.1
6%

3.
13

%
PI

N
EV

IE
W

 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

 
SC

H
O

O
L

18
.5

0%
29

.0
0%

BO
N

D
 E

LE
M

EN
TA

RY
 

SC
H

O
O

L
32

.1
0%

21
.0

0%

FO
RT

 B
RA

D
EN

 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

 
SC

H
O

O
L

38
.7

0%
35

.0
0%

SA
BA

L 
PA

LM
 

EL
EM

EN
TA

RY
 

SC
H

O
O

L
26

.4
0%

34
.0

0%

32
31

1
3.

00
%

8.
6

0
0.

65
%

0.
00

%
A

PA
LA

CH
EE

 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

 
SC

H
O

O
L

31
.0

0%
27

.0
0%

51

Exhibit 4: Table 20 from 2022 Needs Assessment



Le
on

 
Co

un
ty

 Z
ip

 
Co

de

H
ea

lth
y 

C
hi

ld
re

n,
 Y

ou
th

, &
 F

am
ily

 In
di

ca
to

rs
St

ab
le

 a
nd

 N
ur

tu
rin

g 
Fa

m
ili

es
 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
El

em
en

ta
ry

 S
ch

oo
ls

W
ith

in
 Z

ip
 C

od
e

Su
cc

es
s 

in
 S

ch
oo

l &
 L

ife
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
Sc

ho
ol

s

%
 o

f M
ot

he
rs

 
w

ith
 n

o 
Pr

en
at

al
 C

ar
e 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

R
at

e 
of

 In
fa

nt
 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

1,
00

0 
B

ir
th

s 
in

 
Le

on
 C

ou
nt

y 
fr

om
 2

01
6-

20
20

)

R
at

e 
of

 
M

at
er

na
l 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

B
ir

th
s 

in
 L

eo
n 

Co
un

ty
 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

%
 o

f F
am

ili
es

 
Li

vi
ng

 in
 

Po
ve

rt
y 

(a
t 

Le
ss

 T
ha

n 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 
Po

ve
rt

y 
Le

ve
l 

20
15

-2
01

9 
Es

tim
at

es
)

%
 o

f 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 

Fo
st

er
 C

ar
e 

(Y
ou

th
 u

nd
er

 
th

e 
A

ge
 o

f 
18

 in
 2

01
0)

%
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n 
 

Ki
nd

er
ga

rt
en

 
R

ea
dy

 
(s

co
rin

g13
3  

50
0 

or
 G

re
at

er
 

on
 S

TA
R

 
Ea

rly
 L

ite
ra

cy
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t)

%
 P

ro
fic

ie
nt

 
in

 3
rd

 g
ra

de
 

EL
A

 (i
n 

20
21

 
fo

r L
ev

el
 3

 a
nd

 
ab

ov
e)

32
31

1 
(c

on
t.)

J M
IC

H
AE

L 
CO

N
LE

Y 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

  
SC

H
O

O
L 

AT
 

SO
U
TH

W
O
O
D

51
.3

0%
61

.0
0%

TA
LL

AH
AS

SE
E 

CL
AS

SI
CA

L 
SC

H
O

O
L

59
.5

0%
54

.0
0%

32
31

2
2.

80
%

3.
5

69
.4

1.
30

%
0.

80
%

SE
A

LE
Y 

EL
EM

EN
TA

RY
 

SC
H

O
O

L
58

.6
0%

43
.0

0%

KI
LL

EA
RN

 L
AK

ES
 

EL
EM

EN
TA

RY
 

SC
H

O
O

L
62

.5
0%

78
.0

0%

G
IL

CH
RI

ST
 

EL
EM

EN
TA

RY
 

SC
H

O
O

L
78

.2
0%

84
.0

0%

H
AW

KS
�R
IS
E�

EL
EM

EN
TA

RY
 

SC
H

O
O

L
59

.7
0%

83
.0

0%

52

Exhibit 4: Table 20 from 2022 Needs Assessment



Le
on

 
Co

un
ty

 Z
ip

 
Co

de

H
ea

lth
y 

C
hi

ld
re

n,
 Y

ou
th

, &
 F

am
ily

 In
di

ca
to

rs
St

ab
le

 a
nd

 N
ur

tu
rin

g 
Fa

m
ili

es
 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
El

em
en

ta
ry

 S
ch

oo
ls

W
ith

in
 Z

ip
 C

od
e

Su
cc

es
s 

in
 S

ch
oo

l &
 L

ife
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
Sc

ho
ol

s

%
 o

f M
ot

he
rs

 
w

ith
 n

o 
Pr

en
at

al
 C

ar
e 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

R
at

e 
of

 In
fa

nt
 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

1,
00

0 
B

ir
th

s 
in

 
Le

on
 C

ou
nt

y 
fr

om
 2

01
6-

20
20

)

R
at

e 
of

 
M

at
er

na
l 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

B
ir

th
s 

in
 L

eo
n 

Co
un

ty
 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

%
 o

f F
am

ili
es

 
Li

vi
ng

 in
 

Po
ve

rt
y 

(a
t 

Le
ss

 T
ha

n 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 
Po

ve
rt

y 
Le

ve
l 

20
15

-2
01

9 
Es

tim
at

es
)

%
 o

f 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 

Fo
st

er
 C

ar
e 

(Y
ou

th
 u

nd
er

 
th

e 
A

ge
 o

f 
18

 in
 2

01
0)

%
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n 
 

Ki
nd

er
ga

rt
en

 
R

ea
dy

 
(s

co
rin

g13
3  

50
0 

or
 G

re
at

er
 

on
 S

TA
R

 
Ea

rly
 L

ite
ra

cy
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t)

%
 P

ro
fic

ie
nt

 
in

 3
rd

 g
ra

de
 

EL
A

 (i
n 

20
21

 
fo

r L
ev

el
 3

 a
nd

 
ab

ov
e)

32
31

3
33

.3
0%

0
0

N
O

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
RY

 S
CH

O
O

L 
IN

 Z
IP

 C
O

D
E

32
31

4
0.

00
%

20
0

0
N

O
 E

LE
M

EN
TA

RY
 S

CH
O

O
L 

IN
 Z

IP
 C

O
D

E

32
31

5
0.

00
%

0
0

N
O

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
RY

 S
CH

O
O

L 
IN

 Z
IP

 C
O

D
E

32
31

6
0.

00
%

0
0

N
O

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
RY

 S
CH

O
O

L 
IN

 Z
IP

 C
O

D
E

53

Exhibit 4: Table 20 from 2022 Needs Assessment



Le
on

 
Co

un
ty

 Z
ip

 
Co

de

H
ea

lth
y 

C
hi

ld
re

n,
 Y

ou
th

, &
 F

am
ily

 In
di

ca
to

rs
St

ab
le

 a
nd

 N
ur

tu
rin

g 
Fa

m
ili

es
 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
El

em
en

ta
ry

 S
ch

oo
ls

W
ith

in
 Z

ip
 C

od
e

Su
cc

es
s 

in
 S

ch
oo

l &
 L

ife
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
Sc

ho
ol

s

%
 o

f M
ot

he
rs

 
w

ith
 n

o 
Pr

en
at

al
 C

ar
e 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

R
at

e 
of

 In
fa

nt
 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

1,
00

0 
B

ir
th

s 
in

 
Le

on
 C

ou
nt

y 
fr

om
 2

01
6-

20
20

)

R
at

e 
of

 
M

at
er

na
l 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

B
ir

th
s 

in
 L

eo
n 

Co
un

ty
 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

%
 o

f F
am

ili
es

 
Li

vi
ng

 in
 

Po
ve

rt
y 

(a
t 

Le
ss

 T
ha

n 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 
Po

ve
rt

y 
Le

ve
l 

20
15

-2
01

9 
Es

tim
at

es
)

%
 o

f 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 

Fo
st

er
 C

ar
e 

(Y
ou

th
 u

nd
er

 
th

e 
A

ge
 o

f 
18

 in
 2

01
0)

%
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n 
 

Ki
nd

er
ga

rt
en

 
R

ea
dy

 
(s

co
rin

g13
3  

50
0 

or
 G

re
at

er
 

on
 S

TA
R

 
Ea

rly
 L

ite
ra

cy
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t)

%
 P

ro
fic

ie
nt

 
in

 3
rd

 g
ra

de
 

EL
A

 (i
n 

20
21

 
fo

r L
ev

el
 3

 a
nd

 
ab

ov
e)

32
31

7
3.

50
%

4.
9

0
1.

32
%

0.
36

%
 

CH
A

IR
ES

 
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

 
SC

H
O

O
L

50
.7

0%
55

.0
0%

G
O

VE
RN

O
R'

S 
CH

A
RT

ER
52

.6
0%

33
.0

0%

BU
CK

�L
AK

E�
EL

EM
EN

TA
RY

 
SC

H
O

O
L

70
.6

0%
79

.0
0%

32
32

7
0.

00
%

0
0

N
/A

0%
N

/A

32
33

3
0.

00
%

0
0

N
/A

0.
80

%
N

/A

54

Exhibit 4: Table 20 from 2022 Needs Assessment



Le
on

 
Co

un
ty

 Z
ip

 
Co

de

H
ea

lth
y 

C
hi

ld
re

n,
 Y

ou
th

, &
 F

am
ily

 In
di

ca
to

rs
St

ab
le

 a
nd

 N
ur

tu
rin

g 
Fa

m
ili

es
 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
El

em
en

ta
ry

 S
ch

oo
ls

W
ith

in
 Z

ip
 C

od
e

Su
cc

es
s 

in
 S

ch
oo

l &
 L

ife
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
Sc

ho
ol

s

%
 o

f M
ot

he
rs

 
w

ith
 n

o 
Pr

en
at

al
 C

ar
e 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

R
at

e 
of

 In
fa

nt
 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

1,
00

0 
B

ir
th

s 
in

 
Le

on
 C

ou
nt

y 
fr

om
 2

01
6-

20
20

)

R
at

e 
of

 
M

at
er

na
l 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

B
ir

th
s 

in
 L

eo
n 

Co
un

ty
 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

%
 o

f F
am

ili
es

 
Li

vi
ng

 in
 

Po
ve

rt
y 

(a
t 

Le
ss

 T
ha

n 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 
Po

ve
rt

y 
Le

ve
l 

20
15

-2
01

9 
Es

tim
at

es
)

%
 o

f 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 

Fo
st

er
 C

ar
e 

(Y
ou

th
 u

nd
er

 
th

e 
A

ge
 o

f 
18

 in
 2

01
0)

%
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n 
 

Ki
nd

er
ga

rt
en

 
R

ea
dy

 
(s

co
rin

g13
3  

50
0 

or
 G

re
at

er
 

on
 S

TA
R

 
Ea

rly
 L

ite
ra

cy
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t)

%
 P

ro
fic

ie
nt

 
in

 3
rd

 g
ra

de
 

EL
A

 (i
n 

20
21

 
fo

r L
ev

el
 3

 a
nd

 
ab

ov
e)

32
33

4
0.

00
%

0
0

N
/A

9.
55

%
N

/A

32
34

3
0.

00
%

0
0

N
/A

0%
N

/A

32
34

4
0.

00
%

0
0

N
/A

1.
23

%
N

/A

32
35

1
7.

70
%

0
0

N
/A

0.
34

%
N

/A

32
35

8
0.

00
%

0
0

N
/A

11
.6

3%
N

/A

55

Exhibit 4: Table 20 from 2022 Needs Assessment



Le
on

 
Co

un
ty

 Z
ip

 
Co

de

H
ea

lth
y 

C
hi

ld
re

n,
 Y

ou
th

, &
 F

am
ily

 In
di

ca
to

rs
St

ab
le

 a
nd

 N
ur

tu
rin

g 
Fa

m
ili

es
 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
El

em
en

ta
ry

 S
ch

oo
ls

W
ith

in
 Z

ip
 C

od
e

Su
cc

es
s 

in
 S

ch
oo

l &
 L

ife
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
Sc

ho
ol

s

%
 o

f M
ot

he
rs

 
w

ith
 n

o 
Pr

en
at

al
 C

ar
e 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

R
at

e 
of

 In
fa

nt
 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

1,
00

0 
B

ir
th

s 
in

 
Le

on
 C

ou
nt

y 
fr

om
 2

01
6-

20
20

)

R
at

e 
of

 
M

at
er

na
l 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
(p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

B
ir

th
s 

in
 L

eo
n 

Co
un

ty
 

fr
om

 2
01

6-
20

20
)

%
 o

f F
am

ili
es

 
Li

vi
ng

 in
 

Po
ve

rt
y 

(a
t 

Le
ss

 T
ha

n 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 
Po

ve
rt

y 
Le

ve
l 

20
15

-2
01

9 
Es

tim
at

es
)

%
 o

f 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 

Fo
st

er
 C

ar
e 

(Y
ou

th
 u

nd
er

 
th

e 
A

ge
 o

f 
18

 in
 2

01
0)

%
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n 
 

Ki
nd

er
ga

rt
en

 
R

ea
dy

 
(s

co
rin

g13
3  

50
0 

or
 G

re
at

er
 

on
 S

TA
R

 
Ea

rly
 L

ite
ra

cy
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t)

%
 P

ro
fic

ie
nt

 
in

 3
rd

 g
ra

de
 

EL
A

 (i
n 

20
21

 
fo

r L
ev

el
 3

 a
nd

 
ab

ov
e)

32
36

2
0.

00
%

0
0

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

32
39

9
0.

00
%

0
0

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

Pl
ea

se
 n

ot
e:

 In
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 z

ip
 c

od
e 

le
ve

l i
nd

ic
at

or
s,

 N
/A

 r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

da
ta

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
zi

p 
co

de
. I

n 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 e
le

m
en

ta
ry

 s
ch

oo
l i

nd
ic

at
or

s,
 N

/A
 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 th

at
 a

 s
ch

oo
l w

as
 n

ot
 p

re
se

nt
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
rr

es
po

nd
in

g 
zi

p 
co

de
. T

he
re

fo
re

, d
at

a 
w

as
 n

ot
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 
*N

on
-r
es
id
en

tia
l�z
ip
�c
od

es
�(e
.g
.,�
PO

�B
ox
es
)�w

er
e�
re
m
ov
ed

**
H
ig
hl
ig
ht
ed

�c
en

su
s�
tr
ac
ts
�r
ep

re
se
nt
�th

e�
hi
gh

es
t�p

re
se
nc
e�
of
�fa

m
ili
es
�li
vi
ng

�in
�p
ov
er
ty
�(>
35

%
)

**
* 

H
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 e
le

m
en

ta
ry

 s
ch

oo
ls

 in
 b

ol
d 

fo
nt

 r
ep

re
se

nt
 a

 T
itl

e 
1 

Sc
ho

ol
.

56

Exhibit 4: Table 20 from 2022 Needs Assessment



CSC Leon
SIPS Eligible Applications

September 2023

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

Submitted By Organization Category Amount Requested Alignment Request for Funds

Darian Davis Link Up Tally, Inc. Sponsorship $5,000.00 Success in School & Life Support “In-Touch Community Day & Basketball Tournament;" a series of 
community and law enforcement collaborative events in the vicinity of 
Holton Street Apts. (32310), Basin St. Apts. (32304), and Sunrise Apts. 
(32301)

Kyra Adams Maternal and Perinatal 
Services, Inc.

Sponsorship $5,000.00 Healthy Children, Youth, & Families Sponsor of two Mommy Mini Retreats, including babysitting services 
during the events

Beatrice Samson Mission Possible 
Enrichment Center 
(MPEC)

Sponsorship $3,398.04 Success in School & Life; Stable & 
Nurturing Families & Community

Purchase 220 age-appropriate books, 6 books per child at the selected 
PreK site to support Drop Everything and Read (D.E.A.R. Big Bend) 

Kelvin Frazier Tallahassee Trainers 
Foundation

Sponsorship $5,000.00 Healthy Children, Youth, & Families Sponsorship of the Youth Community Mental Health Quarterly Event

Russell Harrison Born 2 Be A Man, Inc. Program Funding $15,000.00 Success in School & Life Back-to-school drive, giving out bookbags that are full of school supplies; 
college tours and youth development trips; tutors when needed.

Judy Mandrell Dream Builders 
Greatness Center, Inc.

Program Funding $15,000.00 Success in School & Life Training, tutoring, family counseling, and family building; family and 
children support gatherings, community children and youth 
empowerment sessions; Thanksgiving and Christmas community dinner 
and unity services; one on one reading and math  tutoring. 

Stanley Sims H.E.L.P. Program Funding $15,000.00 Stable & Nurturing Families & 
Community

Implement a comprehensive support program for small minority 
businesses in Leon County

Felecia Battle Holt Family Reunion 
Legacy, Inc.

Program Funding $5,000.00 Success in School & Life Upgrade virtual equipment/software; provide educational scholarships; 
and support program staffing. 

Donna Cotterell Indaba, Inc. Program Funding $15,000.00 Success in School & Life; Healthy 
Children, Youth, & Families

Arts-based initiative in under-served communities

Patrice Floyd Javacya Arts 
Conservatory

Program Funding $15,000.00 Success in School & Life; Healthy 
Children, Youth, & Families; Stable 
& Nurturing Families & Community

Expand the STEAM Youth Orchestra with a focus on students on 
Tallahassee's Southside

Dorothy Hinkle KidSafe Program Funding $15,000.00 Healthy Children, Youth, & Families Purchase safety seats and for other agency expenses necessary to 
conduct business.

Gwen Lucas Lincoln Center 
Foundation, Inc.

Program Funding $14,450.00 Success in School & Life; Healthy 
Children, Youth, & Families

Expand youth boxers' participation in three additional competitions

Laura Leonard TallyRobotics/Tallahasse
e LEGO Robotics Club, 
Inc.

Program Funding $15,000.00 Stable & Nurturing Families & 
Community

Enhance our ability to deliver quality events; purchase dedicated team 
laptops, tablets, projectors and screens, and scholarships and event fees 
for teams. 

Timothy Mosley The Less Fortunate Still 
Matter Foundation

Program Funding $15,000.00 Stable & Nurturing Families & 
Community

Provide a mobile commissary for families

Linda Provitt The Project Bridge, Inc. Program Funding $15,000.00 Success in School & Life Provide space, personnel, food, and materials for the tutoring program 
and special events and activities

Page 1 of 2

57



CSC Leon
SIPS Eligible Applications

September 2023

Submitted By Organization Category Amount Requested Alignment Request for Funds

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

Denise Shorter Women Empowering 
Each Other Inc.

Program Funding $15,000.00 Healthy Children, Youth, & Families Enhance our existing Diaper Program in rural areas 

Bernice McMillan Divine Revelations 
Ministries, Inc.

Developmental 
Funding

$14,974.00 Success in School & Life; Stable & 
Nurturing Families & Community

Expand DRMI Geeks & Gramps Program to the next level by adding a co-
mentorship component. 

Justin Swaine Elevate Us Inc. Developmental 
Funding

$15,000.00 Healthy Children, Youth, & 
Families; Stable & Nurturing 
Families & Community

Further develop our new collaborative programming to help underserved 
populations in Leon County 

William Schack Inclusion Cafe Developmental 
Funding

$15,000.00 Stable & Nurturing Families & 
Community

Purchase much needed restaurant equipment and start the process of 
paying for renovations to get open by January 2024.

Trishay Young Melanin Mothers Meet Developmental 
Funding

$15,000.00 Healthy Children, Youth, & Families Emotional well-being and mental health support services

Shaye Greenlee North Florida 
Community 
Development 
Corporation

Developmental 
Funding

$15,000.00 Stable & Nurturing Families & 
Community

Implement micro-grocery vending machines in food deserts

Kaye Crawford STEMS4Girls, Inc. Developmental 
Funding

$15,000.00 Success in School & Life Staffing needs of our existing STEM Literacy program, compensating 
administrative facilitators and providing stipends to tutors.

Page 2 of 2

58


	20230914-Council-Meeting-Agenda.pdf
	20230720 Council Minutes.pdf
	Members Present:
	Members Absent:
	Staff Present:
	Location:
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. ROLL CALL
	III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	IV. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT
	V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
	VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS
	A. Finance and Budget
	1. FLCLASS Intergovernmental Investment Pool
	Mr. Mitchell recused himself from the discussion; Chair Glenn presented the resolution granting Council approval to create investment accounts with FLCLASS. Mr. Jones moved acceptance; Ms. Cummings seconded. There was no public comment. The motion pas...
	2. Truth in Millage (TRIM)
	Mr. Mitchell opened the discussion by providing a review of the millage discussion that occurred at the Finance and Budget Committee. He then moved to accept a roll-back millage of .3477; Mr. Watts seconded.
	Public comment provided by:
	 Ms. Pam Wessling
	 Mr. Rick Lockenbach
	 Mr. Erwin Jackson
	 Ms. Emily Fritz
	Judge Miller abstained from voting, as required by Florida Statute 125.901. The motion was passed unanimously.
	3. FY 2023-24 Budget
	Mr. Mitchell provided an overview of the corresponding budget for the approved tentative millage rate. He then moved for approval; Ms. Cummings seconded.
	Chair Glenn called for a brief recess to recognize former Council Member Liza McFadden for her dedicated service to the council from May 2021 – April 2023.
	The meeting was reconvened at 5:54 pm. There was no public comment and the motion to approve the tentative budget was approved unanimously.
	B. Family Resource Center (FRC) Management
	Chair Glenn asked Ms. Green to provide a brief overview of the Council’s action at the June 26 meeting; Ms. McPhail then guided the Council through the revised procurement process and scope of work for the FRC management ITN.
	Public comment was provided by:
	 Mr. Erwin Jackson
	 Ms. Kelly Otte
	VIII. Next Meeting  Dates
	X. Member Comments
	XI. Adjourn


	July Financials 2023.pdf
	Balance Sheet @ 07-31-2023.pdf
	Budget to Actual - Income  Expense (Oct. 2022 - July 2023).pdf
	Income  Expense by month (Oct. 2022 - July 2023).pdf

	August Financials 2023.pdf
	Balance Sheet @ 08-31-2023.pdf
	Budget to Actual - Income  Expense (Oct. 2022 - August 2023).pdf
	Income  Expense by month (Oct. 2022 - August 2023).pdf

	Executive Director's Report 09142023.pdf
	Memo FRC Management 9.5.23.pdf
	Final-Draft-FRC-Management-ITN-Sep-2023.pdf
	REVISED-CSC-Leon-FRC-Management-ITN (August 2023, Version 4).pdf
	Form-A-Disclosures-and-Affirmation-Statement (1).pdf
	REVISED-Family-Resources-Centers-SOW (August 2023, Version 4).pdf
	I. OVERVIEW
	II. BACKGROUND/RATIONALE
	III. PROGRAM DESIGN
	IV. DATA COLLECTION REQUIREMENTS
	V. PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
	VI. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

	Exhibit 2 - Priority Neighborhood.pdf
	Exhibit 3 - Table 1 from 2022 Needs Assessment.pdf
	Exhibit 4 - Table 20 from 2022 Needs Assessment.pdf

	SIPS 2023 Q4.pdf
	Eligible




